
 

 

 

Truro Board of Selectmen Meeting  
Tuesday, December 11, 2018 

Executive Sesssion – 4:30pm 

                                                     Regular Meeting – 5:00pm  

   Truro Town Hall - 24 Town Hall Road 

 

Executive Session: Move that the Board of Selectmen enter into Executive Session pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 

30A, §21(a) paragraph (2), to Discuss strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with non-union 

personnel and to conduct contract negotiations with non-union  personnel –Town Manager. 

 

1.  PUBLIC COMMENT  

A. Open the Regular Meeting 

B. Public Comment Period - The Commonwealth's Open Meeting Law limits any discussion by members  

of the Board of an issue raised to whether that issue should be placed on a future agenda 

 

2.  PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. A public hearing on a petition from New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (“AT&T”)in conjunction with 

Eversource Energy d/b/a/ NSTAR Electric for Grant of Location for Telecommunication Wires and 

Wireless Attachments and Appurtenances including fiber optic cable (s), remote nodes and pole top 

antennas to be attached to existing Eversource utility pole and install conduit or direct bury cable (s), 

located at 47 Truro Center Road, 42.002291N, -70.053161W, Attachment to existing pole #1466A.   

Presenter: Tim Whalen, Site Aquistion Centerline Communications 

 

3.  BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS NONE 

 

4.  TABLED ITEMS NONE 

 

5.  BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION 

A. Designate Two Board of Selectmen to Participate in the Shared Services Working Group with 

Provincetown  

Presenter: Rae Ann Palmer, Town Manager  

 

6.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature:  

1. Application for a Curb Cut Permit-2 Higgins Hollow Road 

2. Woods Hole Group Phase II & III Proposal for the East Harbor Culvert Replacement 

3. One Day Entertainment and Alcohol License for Castle Hill at Edgewood Farms December 14th 

4. Review and Approve Community Development Partnership Contract for the Housing Rehab 

program for the FY18 CDBG Grant  

B. Review and Approve Business Licenses: Lodging-Truro Vineyards; Common Victualer-Farm Maid 

Foods, Top Mast Café Restaurant, Salty Market  

C. Review and Approve Dan Smith’s Tidal Grant Coordinate Change at Beach Point 

D. Review and Approve Tom Bow for Appointment on Open Space Commitee 
E.   Review and Approve Board of Selectmen Minutes: October 16, 2018, November 7, 2018  

 
7.   SELECTMEN REPORTS AND TOWN MANAGER REPORT  

8.  SELECTMEN COMMENTS  

9.   NEXT MEETING AGENDA:      Tuesday, December 18  

 



1 

 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
   Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 

REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant on behalf of Tim Whalen Site Acquisitions 
(Centerline Communications) 
 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

ITEM:  Petition from New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (“AT&T”) in conjunction with Eversource 
Energy d/b/a NSTAR Electric for Grant Location for Telecommunication Wires and Wireless 
Attachments and Appurtenances at Existing Eversource Pole #1466A at 47 Truro Center Rd 
 

EXPLANATION:  AT&T proposes to deploy One (1) small cell site in the Town of Truro to deal 
with the rapidly increasing demand on AT&T’s Wireless Network. The cell site will be mounted 
on a proposed Eversource utility pole located within the public right of way at 47 Truro Center 
Rd. The small cell site will work in conjunction with the existing macro sites installed on 
rooftops, towers and other structures in and around the Town of Truro.   
 
The Truro Center Road location was chosen by the radio frequency engineers due to the high 
traffic and data demands on AT&T’s network. AT&T’s existing macro cell sites are not 
providing adequate data capacity in this location due to increased population, vehicular and 
foot traffic, multiple wireless devices used by each person and other contributing factors.  This 
small cell site will work to offload the demand on the macro sites and allow for increased data 
capacity and speed within the immediate vicinity of the proposed cell site. 
 
The small cell site will be installed using standard commercially accepted methods in 
accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. All proposed 
attachments are to existing poles owned and maintained by Eversource. AT&T has entered 
into a Pole Attachment Agreement with Eversource.  
 
The small cell installation on each existing utility pole will include: fiber optic cable (s); remote 
nodes in a small equipment cabinet, (H32” x W 18” x D12”) mounted to the pole at least 8’ 
above ground level; an unobtrusive pole top antenna measuring 24.7” long and 10” in 
diameter; conduits and cable protectors; and , an electrical meter with shutoff switch. 
Emissions comply with the applicable standards of the Federal Control Commission (47 U.S. 

 

         Agenda Item:  2A 
 

 

 

 



2 

 

Code § 332 (c)(7)(B)(iv).  
 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   Without the installation, AT&T would be unable to provide 
specifically established coverage and capacity objectives.  
 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve the Petition for Grant of Location from New 
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (“AT&T”) in conjunction with Eversource Energy d/b/a NSTAR 
Electric for Grant Location for Telecommunication Wires and Wireless Attachments and 
Appurtenances at Existing Eversource Pole #1466A at 47 Truro Center Rd.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Public Hearing Notice  

2. New Singular Wireless PCS, LLC (“AT&T”) Petition for Grant of Location, Curved Shroud 
Technical Specifications   

3. Department Head Approval 
4. Assessing Department-Abutter’s List; Photos and Google Street View of Location of 

Eversource Pole (#1466A)   



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
  Email: ntudor@truro-ma.gov or nscoullar@truro-ma.gov  

TOWN OF TRURO 

PUBLIC HEARING 

NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS, LLC (“AT&T”) PETITION OF GRANT OF LOCATION 

FOR TELECOMMUNICATION WIRES AND WIRELESS ATTACHMENTS AND 

APPURTENANCES ATTACHMENT TO EXISTING UTILITY POLE OWNED BY EVERSOURCE 

WITHIN THE TOWN OF TRURO LOCATED AT 47 TRURO CENTER RD 

The Truro Board of Selectmen will conduct a public hearing in accordance with MGL Ch. 166, § 21, 22 and 

25A on a petition from New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (“AT&T”)in conjunction with Eversource Energy 

d/b/a/ NSTAR Electric for Grant of Location for Telecommunication Wires and Wireless Attachments and 

Appurtenances including fiber optic cable (s), remote nodes and pole top antennas to be attached to existing 

Eversource utility pole and install conduit or direct bury cable(s): Project: cRAN_CP 28_P2A: Location: 47 

Truro Center Road, 42.002291N, -70.053161W, Attachment to existing pole #1466A.  Said hearing will be held 

on Tuesday, December 11, 2018 at 5:00 p.m. at the Truro Town Hall, 24 Town Hall Road, Truro.   

Robert Weinstein, Chairman 

Board of Selectmen 

Town of Truro 

     Agenda Item: 2A1 

mailto:ntudor@truro-ma.gov
mailto:nscoullar@truro-ma.gov


               Agenda Item: 2A2







8

8



8

8























                Agenda Item: 2A3



Agenda Item: 2A4













1 

 

Agenda Item: 5A 

TOWN OF TRURO 
             Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration  

 

REQUESTOR:   Rae Ann Palmer, Town Manager  

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  December 11, 2018  

 

ITEM: Discussion of Shared Services Working Group Advisory Members  

 

EXPLANATION:  It was agreed at the November 27th Joint meeting with Provincetown to 

create a working group which includes the Town Managers and Assistant Town Managers from 

the two Towns along with two advisory representatives from both the Town of Truro and the 

Town of Provincetown Board of Selectmen.  The advisory members will assist the Managers 

with policy direction for future shared services endeavors.  It is anticipated that meetings will 

be held quarterly.   

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO name Truro Board of Selectmen Members 

_______________ and _______________ as advisory representatives to the Shared Services 

Working Group between the Town of Truro and the Town of Provincetown.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:   None 

 



 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124  Fax: 508-349-5505 

 
 
 
 

6.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature:  

1. Application for a Curb Cut Permit-2 Higgins Hollow Road 

2. Woods Hole Group Phase II & III Proposal for the East Harbor Culvert Replacement 

3. One Day Entertainment and Alcohol License for Castle Hill at Edgewood Farms December 14th 

4. Review and Approve Community Development Partnership Contract for the Housing Rehab 

program for the FY18 CDBG Grant  

B. Review and Approve Business Licenses: Lodging-Truro Vineyards; Common Victualer-Farm Maid 

Foods, Top Mast Café Restaurant, Salty Market  

C. Review and Approve Dan Smith’s Tidal Grant Coordinate Change at Beach Point 

D. Review and Approve Tom Bow for Appointment on Open Space Commitee 
E.   Review and Approve Board of Selectmen Minutes: October 16, 2018, November 7, 2018  

 

 



1 

 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

 

 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

 

REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

ITEM:  Application for a Curb Cut Permit 
 

EXPLANATION:  Thomas Taborelli, owner of 2 Higgins Hollow Road, has submitted an 

application for a curb cut permit to move the driveway away from the busy corner of Higgins 

Hollow Road and Longnook Road.  DPW Director Cabral and Police Chief Calise have both 

signed off on this project. 

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   Driveway will remain where it is currently located. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve the curb cut permit and authorize the Chair to sign. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application for curb cut permit with Plan of Land 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  6A1 
 

 

 

 



Consent Agenda Item:  6A1









 



1 

 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

 

                 Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 

 

REQUESTOR:  Jarrod Cabral, DPW Director 

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

ITEM:  Woods Hole Group Phase II & III Proposal-East Harbor Culvert Replacement 
 

EXPLANATION:  Attached for your review and approval is a proposal from the Woods Hole 

Group for continuing engineering and construction supervision services for the East Harbor 

culvert replacement project. This proposal focuses on the final design and permitting services 

required for the underground culvert between Rte. 6 and Rte. 6A, as well as supplemental 

services for the offshore outfall phase.  

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  Debt Authorization at 2017 Annual Town Meeting 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Culvert will further deteriorate, increasing the threats to road 

utilities, as well as public and private infrastructure.          

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO Approve the Woods Hole Group Phase II & III Proposal for 

the East Harbor Culvert Replacement and Authorize the Chair to Sign. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Phase II & III Proposal 

 

  Consent Agenda Item: 6A2  
 

 

 

 



Consent Agenda Item: 6A2















 

1 

 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

 Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Licensing Department 

 

REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant, on behalf of Truro Center for the Arts at Edgewood Farm  

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

ITEM:  Approval of a One-Day Alcohol and Entertainment License for December 14, 2018 at Truro Center for 

the Arts at Edgewood Farm  

           

EXPLANATION:  MGL Chapter 138 § 14 provides local authority to license Special One-Day alcohol licenses 

and MGL Chapter 140 § 181 provides local authority to license performance events.  

 

The All Alcohol and Entertainment Application for review and approval is for an event being held on Friday, 

December 14, 2018 from 6-9pm for the Truro Center for the Arts annual Holiday Bash Fundraiser 

(https://www.castlehill.org/special-events/2018/12/14/holiday-bash).  The event is being held at Castle Hill at 

Edgewood Farm, 3 Edgewood Way from 6:00pm-9:00pm. The applicant is requesting an all alcohol license and 

there will also be a DJ (Matty Dread) at the fundraiser with amplified music. 

 

The One-Day All Alcohol and One-Day Entertainment Application has been reviewed and approved by the 

Chief of Police. Certificate of Inspection of Edgewood Farm, Certificate of Insurance for Liquor Liability have 

been provided along with Tips Certification.  

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  This fundraiser event will not have alcohol or entertainment.   

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve the One-Day Alcohol and Entertainment Licenses for Truro 

Center for the Arts at Edgewood Farm on Friday, December 14, 2018 from 6:00pm-9:00pm at 3 Edgewood Way 

and to authorize the Chair to sign the applications.   

 

Consent Agenda Item:  6A3 
 

 

 

 

https://www.castlehill.org/special-events/2018/12/14/holiday-bash


 

2 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. One Day Alcohol and Entertainment Application approved by Chief of Police, Liquor Liability, eTIPS 

Certification, Certificate of Inspection, Liquor Liability   



  Consent Agenda Item: 6A3 

















1 

 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
                         Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  

 

REQUESTOR:  Rae Ann Palmer, Town Manager 

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

ITEM: Contract for professional services related to the implementation and administration of the Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Housing Rehabilitation program.  

 

EXPLANATION:  Attached for your review, approval and authorization for the Chair to sign, is the award of a 

contract to Lower Cape Cod Community Development Corporation dba Community Development Partnership 

(CDP) for the Housing Rehabilitation Loan program component of the annual CDBG Grant.  In addition, the 

Town must authorize the Chief Executive Officer of the CDP to modify loan documents as may be required as a 

part of the Town’s Housing Rehab Program.   

 

You will note that there were two respondents to the RFP issued by Bailey Boyd Associates.  Since the 

respondents are tied in scoring, it is staff’s recommendation that the award be made to CDP to maintain 

consistency for the program.  There are Truro residents on the waiting list for funds from this grant and 

maintaining continuity with the existing provider will allow those applicants to receive funds to complete 

home improvements after the award is made. We have not received the contract from Bailey Boyd and 

Associates, I will forward it as soon as it is received. 

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  Funding through the CDBG program through an agreement with the 

Massachusetts Department of Housing and Community Development (“DHCD”.) 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The funding from DHCD cannot be utilized until the Housing Rehabilitation 

Services contract is in place.  

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve the contract with Lower Cape Cod Community Development 

Corporation (CDP) for professional services for the FY18 CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Grant Program, to 

authorize the CEO of CDP to amend loan documents as required and to authorize the Chair to sign.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. CDP Proposal 

2. Scoring Sheet from Selection Process 

 

            Consent Agenda Item:  6A4 
 

 

 

 



3 Main Street Mercantile, Unit 7  Eastham, MA  02642 

P 508.240.7873  F 508.240.5085  E contact@capecdp.org 

www.capecdp.org 

Creating opportunities for people to live, work, & thrive on the Lower Cape 

October 22, 2018 

Cassie Boyd Marsh 
Grant Administrator 
9 Hillside Road 
Scituate, MA 02066-1020 

Dear Ms. Marsh: 

The Lower Cape Cod Community Development Corporation, d/b/a the Community Development 
Partnership, is pleased to present our proposal to provide Housing Rehabilitation Services for a 2018 
Community Development Fund CDBG grant awarded to the Town of Truro. Enclosed please find a 
technical proposal that contains all of the required documentation requested in the RFP and a price 
proposal in a separate sealed envelope. 

The Community Development Partnership has an 18 year history of successful delivery of housing rehab 
services on the Lower and Outer Cape. The CDP utilizes online technology tools that provide greater 
transparency and stronger contractual documentation for the homeowner as well as greater efficiency 
in sharing information between the program staff, homeowners and the general contractors. We have 
found success in advanced practices such as the use of tablets for electronic signature directly on 
payment requests; another such innovation is the ability for the homeowner to fill out a Pre-Application 
online with a direct email address for quick submittal. These new protocols have proven to be highly 
effective and have modernized our program management approach. 

Another significant strength that sets the CDP apart is our strategic and institutional commitment to 
ensuring that each homeowner is educated on the environmental benefits of energy efficiency and lead 
paint abatement. The program's Rehab Specialist has licenses, certifications, training and related work 
expertise, and can effectively help homeowners make informed decisions regarding their energy 
efficiency needs Last year alone, the Housing Rehab programs under the direction of the CDP committed 
over $80,000 to energy efficiency upgrades. The Housing Rehab program also committed over $200,000 
in funds to identify and eliminate lead paint hazards present in homes. 

The CDP has demonstrated our commitment to the success of the Housing Rehab programs by investing 
in both modernization and staff to efficiently and thoroughly expend funds in a timely manner. The CDP  

Consent Agenda Item: 6A4 

mailto:contact@capecdp.org
http://www.capecdp.org/


3 Main Street Mercantile, Unit 7  Eastham, MA  02642 

P 508.240.7873  F 508.240.5085  E contact@capecdp.org 

www.capecdp.org 

 

Cassie Boyd Marsh 
October 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
has the equivalent of 3 full-time staff members working on the program, either in a full-time or part-
time position, as well as additional supporting staff. We feel confident our investments will result in an 
exceptionally well-run program and provide tremendous benefit to participating families and 
contractors. 
 
A table of contents is included with this proposal which allows for easy reading and review of its 
contents. However, if you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me, 508-
240-7873, ex.16 or email jay@capecdp.org.  We look forward to the opportunity to work together to 
preserve and stabilize housing for low and moderate families in our community. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jay Coburn 
Chief Executive Officer 

mailto:contact@capecdp.org
http://www.capecdp.org/
mailto:jay@capecdp.org


 

 

 

October 2018 

PROPOSAL FOR 2018 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
TRURO REGIONAL HOUSING REHABILITATION PROJECT 

COPY 
SUBMITTED BY THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP 

3 MAIN STREET MERCANTILE, UNIT 7 
EASTHAM, MA 02642 

508-240-7873 
Art work by: Kali Andersen-Age 10, Eastham Resident 

 



 
 
 

 
 

Table of Contents 
Section 1  Introduction and Organization Overview 

Section 2  Scope of Services 

Section 3   Minimum Evaluation Criteria and Technical 
   Questions                  

Section 4  Comparative Evaluation Criteria including  
   Before & After Photos and Resumes 
 
Section 5  Executed Certificate of Non-Conclusion 
   Executed Certificate of Tax Compliance 
 
Section 6   Sample Marketing Materials  

Section 7  Sample Application Package including Program  
   Guidelines and Homeowner Application 

Section 8  Sample Work Write-Up, Estimate and Schedule  
   of Values 



 1 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

  

 

 

Section 1 – Truro 

Introduction and Organizational Overview 

The Lower Cape Cod Community Development Corporation, d/b/a the Community Development 

Partnership (CDP), was created in 1992 to address the unique housing and economic 

development needs of the Lower Cape region.   

The CDP has a wealth of CDBG and state funded program administration experience, construction 

expertise and a track-record of successful collaboration with municipal and non-profit partners 

throughout Cape Cod.  The CDP’ s direct and relevant experience, combined with a demonstrated 

commitment to serving the community with the highest quality standards, will ensure that the 

Truro Regional Housing Rehab Program will be successfully marketed, implemented and 

completed on budget and within the allotted time frame. 

Since its inception, the CDP has become a nationally recognized leader in developing and 

delivering innovative programs that foster an economically and environmentally sustainable 

community.  The CDP's affordable rental portfolio consists of 72 units of which 59 are owned and 

managed by the CDP and 13 managed through partnerships with other towns/non-profits.  One 

of the properties developed, owned and managed by the CDP is the 12 unit LEED Platinum 

Certified Thankful Chases Pathway in Harwich—recipient of HUD’s Door Knocker Award 

Competition for Sustainable Housing.  The CDP’s success in  economic development include 

the  nationally recognized Cape Cod Fisheries Trust that retains over $10,000,000 in fishing 

revenues in the local economy each year and provides direct technical  support to the local day-

boat fishing fleet.  In addition to the CDP’s successful micro-loan program, the agency provides 

small business training and technical assistance. 

The CDP’s 26 year track record of managing mission-driven programs that strengthen and 

stabilize low and moderate income families on Cape Cod includes: 

 the successful rehabilitation of over 435 CDBG funded housing rehab projects over a 18 

year period utilizing over $10.5 million in funds 

 the development of 74 DHCD and CDBG funded affordable housing units 

 the management of 72 DHCD and CDBG funded affordable housing rental units 

 the management of a CDBG funded micro-loan program providing over $3.2 in capital to 

200+ small businesses owned by low and moderate income residents 



 2 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

The CDP brings the following strengths to the proposed housing rehab program: 

 Mission driven approach that effectively balances needs of clients within program 

guidelines. 

 Proven track record of program management and responsible stewardship of public 

resources expending funds in a timely manner, compliant with program guidelines. 

 Tested and refined program protocols using latest technology to create greater 

efficiencies and transparency for program stakeholders including homeowners, 

contractors, program staff and the grant administrator.                                     

 Experience and ability to develop accurate construction specifications and budgets 

by a part-time, in-house, Housing Rehab Specialist  who holds a current 

Construction Supervisor’s License.  

 Full-Time staff dedicated solely to the d elivery of Housing Rehab  Programs 

 A Development and Marketing Department to help promote and expand the 

Housing Rehab Program to contractors and homeowners. 

 A strategic focus and organizational commitment to energy efficiency and 

homeowner education. 

 Extensive experience in community development, program marketing and financial 

management. 

 Conflict resolution training and expertise. 

 Legal counsel with housing and real estate contract experience.  

 Respected reputation along with wide-spread community and stakeholder support. 

 Established, positive, long-term working relationships with Cape based contractors 

and builders. 

 Positive feedback from homeowners and contractors. 

 Long standing positive relationships and partnerships with local municipalities, 

non-profits, and housing authorities. 

 Collaborative relationships with Cape Light Compact for energy efficiency upgrades 

as well as South Middlesex Opportunity Council (SMOC) which provides handicap 

upgrades, such as ramps and bathrooms to income qualified homeowners. 

 A sixteen member Board of Directors comprised of business & community leaders, 

and low- to moderate-income residents with deep ties to Lower and Outer Cape 

Communities. 

 A strategic partnership with Cape Cod Children’s Place and the Homeless 

Prevention Council to promote a range of programs and services available to 

support low- to moderate-income families on Cape Cod. 



3 | P a g e        A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 
 

 

Section 2 - Truro 

Scope of Services 

The Scope of Services outlined below includes specific details on how the CDP will deliver exceptional Housing Rehabilitation Services that meet 

the needs of low and moderate-income homeowners while fulfilling the required specification for services.  All program materials referenced in 

each section are updated, available and ready for use.  In addition, a database of pre-applicants is in place so that program marketing activities 

may commence immediately upon being selected as the program contractor.  A sample of program materials is part of this proposal including 

the Program Marketing Flyers, Program Guidelines and Application, and a sample Estimate and Work Write-Up.  In addition, a copy of the 

program's integrated Schedule of Values used to monitor progress payments is included. 

Required Scope of Services  Proposed  Activities 
1.    Marketing the Housing 

Rehabilitation Program 
a. Initiate a marketing effort  

to reach targeted 
neighborhoods and all LMI 
residents 

b. Reach out to applicants on 
existing waitlist 

c. Provide information and 
information sessions to 
residents interested in 
participating in housing 
rehab program 

d. Create a mechanism for 
accepting applications from 
residents in such a manner  

The CDP is a highly respected organization with a 26 year history of providing housing solutions on Cape Cod.  As 
such, we have well established connections with a variety of media outlets, non-profit community-based 
service organizations, local officials and the business community. These relationships will be fully utilized to 
market the program and ensure that potential qualified applicants have every opportunity to become aware 
of the program and learn more about it.  All of the program's marketing materials have been updated and now 
include full color examples of completed projects with the eye catching phrase "See the Possibilities." This 
theme will be used consistently in all print, web and TV/radio to create an inviting and recognizable brand for 
the program.  Specific outreach to the community will be achieved through multiple channels: 

 Press Releases to 15 local media outlets (including newspapers, magazines and radio) 

 Inclusion in the CDP’s monthly e-newsletter sent to over 3,000 recipients which features success stories 
on Housing Rehab clients throughout the year, the impact on the residents and their place in the 
community 

 Inclusion in the CDP’s quarterly newsletter mailed to over 1,000 recipients which features success 
stories on Housing Rehab clients throughout the year, the impact on the residents and their place in 
the community 



4 | P a g e        A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 
 

as to ensure that there is no 
discrimination toward a 
resident and that all 
applicants are treated fairly 
and prioritized on a first 
come/first served basis with 
the exception of bona fide 
emergency rehab needs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Dedicated page on the CDP  website, with direct link from the homepage  

 Regular posts on our Facebook page which has over 1000 followers and a broad geographical reach 

 Housing Rehabilitation success story included in the Annual Report 

 Announcements on the CDP’s bi-weekly radio show This Place Matters airing on WOMR, 92.1 FM and 
WFMR, 91.3 FM and corresponding Public Service Announcements 

 Emails to partner organizations to spread word to their membership/clients 

 Targeted postcard mailings to year round residents 
  

In addition, marketing through these outlets will continue throughout the full program timeline in order to 
build the pre-application waitlist to demonstrate community need for subsequent funding rounds.  Below is a 
complete list of proposed marketing activities. 
 

Pre-Applicant Outreach - A list of all households that have submitted pre-applications in anticipation of available 
program funds this fall is being maintained by the CDP in the interest of the Housing Rehab program’s success.  Each 
household will be mailed a complete application package, with clear information on contacting the CDP with any 
questions the applicant might have.  Means of communication include phone call, email, or office appointments. 
 

Radio, TV & Print - In addition, the program will be promoted by placing public notices on local community radio 
and local TV channels, by sending program flyers with meals delivered by Elder Services Meals on Wheels.  Other 
means of promotion will involve targeted direct mail pieces, and by posting flyers in public locations, such as general 
stores and coffee shops, churches, post offices and social service agencies. Flyers will also be inserted in each town's 
tax bills, pending Select Board/Town approval.  Finally, the program will again be featured during the CDP's bi-weekly 
radio show on WOMR, This Place Matters.  Previous interviews are available for download as a podcast from the 
CDP website.  
  
Public Presentations – Information about the Housing Rehab Program will be presented to the Board of Selectmen 
of each participating town so that viewers at home may learn about the program. In addition, presentations will be 
made to staff and clientele at community-based social service organizations that serve the target market for the 
Rehab Program including Community Action Committee of the Cape & Islands, Family Pantry of Cape Cod, Lower 
Cape Outreach Council, Homeless Prevention Council, Helping Our Women, WE CAN and town Councils on Aging. 
 

Information Sessions - Formal information sessions will be held in a variety of locations such as public libraries, 
Councils on Aging and community centers at varied and convenient times throughout the participating towns to 
provide maximum flexibility for potential applicants to attend.   Past program participants will be invited to share 
their experience with the program. 
 
As an integral part of the Cape community, the CDP has a strong reputation for providing programs and services to 
all qualified residents in the region.  Our office at 3 Main Street Mercantile, Unit 7, Eastham, MA is easily located on 
Route 6, is handicapped accessible and staffed with a professional and administrative staff every weekday from 
8:30am to 5:00pm.  The Housing Rehabilitation team will be available to answer any questions about the program 



5 | P a g e        A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 
 

1.  Cont’d 
 

and the application process either by phone or in person, both on a walk-in basis or by appointment.  Applicants 
who are home-bound are welcome to make arrangements for an in-home visit.   
 
To ensure fairness of evaluation and processing of applications, the CDP adheres to a policy of serving qualified 
applicants on a first come/first served basis.  This policy is contained in all correspondence, marketing materials and 
informational sessions.  Completed applications, delivered to the CDP by hand, US Mail, email scan or fax are time 
stamped upon receipt.  The housing rehab program manager will review each application to make sure all items per 
the Documentation Check List, included in the application packet, are present and legible.  If any application is found 
to be missing elements, the homeowner will be notified by phone as to what information is missing and a follow up 
letter will be sent including a list of all missing items and the steps needed to complete the application.   Only 
completed applications will be placed on the active waiting lists.  In the event an applicant has an emergency need, 
a site visit may be required to determine if the situation qualifies for urgent attention.  A completed application is 
still a requirement for emergency cases.  Our part-time staff member acting as Housing Rehab Specialist is available 
to confirm and/or determine emergency situations requiring immediate attention. 

2.    Selecting Applicants  for the 
Program 
a. Complete full income 

qualifications of each 
applicant  and tenant, as 
required 

b. Complete  work write-up of 
each applicant's  home, 
following state, federal and 
local regulations  regarding 
the abatement of toxic 
materials and code 
compliance 

c. Complete an environmental 
review on each property, 
submitting it to the 
required 
authorities/agencies 

d. Analyze the homeowner's 
ability to provide  matching 
funds 
 
 
 
 

Our team has years of experience with income certification related to Housing Rehab and affordable rental/ 
ownership homes and a commitment to working with low and moderate income families in the region.  The team 
also has extensive rehab construction experience related to CDBG funds. This combination of technical skill and 
mission driven values results in an approach that is tailored to meet the clients’ needs, to help them complete the 
application process and to ensure that all program guidelines are fully satisfied. 
 

Team members also have experience and technical expertise in general construction supervision for rehabilitation 
and new housing construction as well as the submission of environmental review documents including Full 21E 
Environmental Assessments, EPA statutory checklists and lead testing.  The team includes a Rehab Specialist who is 
available for additional support if needed. 
 

Finally, our team has a track record of collaboration with organizations that are capable of providing supplemental 
construction funds including SMOC, MA OEP "Get the Lead Out" Program, HAC Building Repair Funds and emergency 
support organizations such as Lower Cape Outreach Council, Homeless Prevention Council and a variety of local 
church groups.  Although not required by program guidelines, this team has adopted a formal program protocol of 
immediately helping homeowners access Cape Light Compact funding to address eligible energy efficiency upgrades 
included in the project. This allows limited rehab funds to be used for other eligible rehab requirements within the 
home or to additional projects in the region. 
 
Below is a detailed description of the proposed applicant selection process. 
 

Application packets will be made available upon request to year-round homeowners and landlords in participating 
towns.  Completed applications will be reviewed on a first come/first served basis. The review consists of the 
following steps: 
 

Income Eligibility Analysis - This entails a complete analysis of all sources of income for anyone over 18 years old 



6 | P a g e        A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 
 

 
2.  Cont’d 
 

 

who resides in the home.  Analysis includes but is not limited to income from self-employment, salaried employment, 
unemployment, social security benefits, workers’ comp benefits, veteran’s benefits and any income from the 
applicant’s assets. 
 

Debt to Value Eligibility Analysis - This entails a complete analysis of the applicant’s debts as well as a review of the 
value of the applicant’s house to ensure that the applicant meets the debt to value eligibility requirements. 
 

Project Eligibility Analysis - Each applicant is required to indicate the specific nature of the proposed project on the 
application. This is to ensure that the proposed project does not exceed the definition of moderate rehab as defined 
by DHCD. In most cases, this may be determined by the information provided on the application and/or in the follow-
up interview. However, in cases where it is unclear whether the condition of the home exceeds these guidelines, the 
Rehab Specialist will conduct a drive-by and/or home visit to assess the condition of the house before the applicant 
moves to the next stage in the process. 
 

Homeowner Matching and Other Leveraged Funds - In order to maximize the rehab capacity for each applicant, an 
assessment of the availability of additional funds will be conducted. This may include funds from other sources such 
as the Cape Light Compact (for energy efficiency upgrades) and SMOC (for eligible accessibility specifications).  In 
addition, the homeowner's ability to provide matching funds will also be determined at this stage of the process. 
 

Additional Steps for Proposed Projects with Rental Units - In the case of a proposed project for a rental unit (in an 
existing structure), the existing tenant's income also needs to be qualified in order for the unit to qualify for the 
program. In addition, if the homeowner is not income eligible, the homeowner will be required to provide matching 
funds for the proposed project. 
 

Job Development and Environmental Review - Once it is determined that an applicant meets all of the eligibility 
requirements, the Rehab Specialist will conduct  a full assessment of the rehab needs of each qualified unit and 
provide  a full and detailed  Work Write-Up on which contractors may submit  bids. The Work Write-Up is developed 
to meet the applicant’s rehab needs and in accordance with DHCD’s guidelines for code, health and safety failures, 
as well as the abatement of toxic materials.  The Work Write-Up will also include as many specifications that increase 
the energy efficiency of the unit as appropriate and feasible.  This part of the process also entails an environmental 
review and the submission of the review, evaluation and/or any other testing required for project completion, to 
the appropriate authorities/agencies. 
 

Prioritizing Projects for Bid - Once an applicant has been deemed eligible to participate in the program, the project 
will immediately move to the bidding phase.  A project of an emergency nature will be moved to the bidding phase 
ahead all other projects. 

3.     Solicitation of bids 
a. Create a list of licensed 

General Contractors for 
participation in the 
program, securing 

The CDP has experience in completing over 400 CDBG funded housing rehab projects, as well as experience in 
affordable housing rental rehab projects and owner representative services for multi-unit new construction projects. 
In addition, the CDP team has extensive relationships with area contractors, local building officials and licensed 
construction specialists.  The in-house Rehab Specialist is a construction professional with Building Performance 
Institute Certification in Building Analysis and Building Envelope, and Heat Analysis Training.   She also holds a MA 



7 | P a g e        A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 
 

documentation of licenses, 
insurances, and references 

b. Provide homeowners with a 
list of Contractors and 
insure that bids are 
collected for each project, 
as defined by a consistent 
detailed work write-up 

c. Review bids and assist 
homeowners in selecting 
contractor 

d. Prepare contract between 
contractor and homeowner 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Construction Supervisors License and MA Home Improvement Contractor License as well as a High Risk De-leading 
certificate; all appropriate licenses are up to date and in good standing.  As such, our team is well qualified to solicit 
bids in accordance with CDBG guidelines and to assist homeowners in selecting a contractor that best meets their 
needs. 
 

This team has extensive experience assisting homeowners by preparing and facilitating the execution of contract 
documents for rehab projects.  The documents used in the program have been reviewed by legal counsel and in its 
17 year history of completing housing rehab projects, the CDP has never had a legal dispute or major conflict with a 
homeowner. 
 

Furthermore, the contract documents proposed in this Scope of Work have been updated to clearly align with both 
the Detailed Work-Write Up as well as the Schedule of Values--providing greater clarity and protection for both the 
homeowner and the contractor. The Schedule of Values which, contains direct and easy-to-follow references to the 
detailed Work Write-Up, is used to track project progress and the budget.   
 

Below is a detailed  outline  of the proposed bid solicitation process: 
 

Verified List of General Contractors – The CDP has established relationships with approximately 20 licensed and 
insured contractors that meet the specifications required to bid on CDBG funded rehabilitation projects.  In addition, 
new contractors are always invited to learn more about the program. Contractors new to the program are required 
to provide verification of licenses and insurance as well as references that can attest to their experience and capacity 
to fulfill the type of work that would be included in a Work Write-Up provided by the Rehab Specialist. They will 
then be added to the list of verified contractors.  New contractors are also invited to attend an orientation session 
to learn about how the program works.  The orientation includes information about the bidding process, profiles a 
typical project, and explains payment policies and the role of the Program Manager and the Rehab Specialist. 
 

List of Contractors for Homeowner - The list of contractors and their contact information will be provided to the 
homeowner as requested. In addition, the homeowner may recommend a contractor to the program who may be 
eligible to bid on the project.   Once the contractor has registered with the CDP and been fully vetted by the HR 
team, including verification of insurance and references, they will then be added to the verified list of contractors. 

 
Bid Review and Contractor Selection Process - The Draft Work Write-Up is released to the verified list of contractors 
via email along with an invitation to attend a scheduled contractor "walk-through." The walk-through is an 
opportunity for potential bidders to review the proposed project on-site and ask to questions about the Draft Work 
Write-Up. Potential bidders also take measurements and assess the condition of the home, first hand, before bidding 
on the project. In the event that field conditions have changed since the initial walk through with the rehab specialist, 
the Draft Work Write-Up will be amended and sent out, via email to all of the contractors who attended the walk-
through as a Final Work Write-Up. 
 

The Final Work Write-Up and Bid Package are then sent out via email to all of the contractors who attended the 
walk-through. Any questions from bidders are submitted in writing and answers are provided in writing to the entire 



8 | P a g e        A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 
 

 
3.  Cont’d 

list of verified contractors via email.   A minimum of three bids will be solicited and the homeowner will be sent a 
bid summary sheet that presents each bid in a uniform way so that the homeowner can clearly understand each bid. 
 

Contracts - Once the contractor has been selected by the homeowner, contract documents will be prepared for the 
homeowner and contractor to sign.  At this point, a notice to proceed is signed by the homeowner and the contractor 
is authorized to start work.  If the homeowner is contributing any of their own money to the project, their 
contribution is collected at the closing so that their money may be released with the same protocols for inspections 
as the program funds. 

4.    Completion of closing with          
each homeowner    
a. Complete closing 

documents, including deed 
restrictions and loan 
documents 

b. Record all appropriate 
documents at the Registry 
of Deeds 

Members of the CDP team have extensive experience with title searches, affordable housing deed restrictions, 
promissory notes, loan agreements and mortgage recordings.   All documents used in the program have been 
reviewed by legal counsel to ensure that they meet the specifications of MA DHCD and the CDBG program guidelines.  
In addition, there is a notary public on staff for the convenience of the program participants. 
 
Below is a description of the proposed closing process: 
 
The Housing Rehabilitation Program closing process includes the preparation of the mortgage, the deferred 
forgivable loan agreement and the promissory note.  Once executed with the homeowner, the mortgage is filed with 
the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds. The contractor is present at the loan closing to sign the General Contractor 
agreement and also answer any questions the homeowner may have. This ensures all parties are in agreement with 
the construction process and the constructions schedule, materials and selections have been reviewed and 
approved. 
 

5.   Oversight of Construction 
a. Have Licensed 

Construction 
Supervisor/Rehab  
Specialist review  each 
project  previous to 
making progress payment 
to contractor.    

b. Secure copy of Building 
Permit and Certificate of 
Occupancy prior to final 
payment to contractor 

c. Secure all necessary sign-
offs from homeowner and 
General Contractor 
previous to closing out 
project 

The primary Rehab Specialist utilized for the Housing Rehab Program is a part-time staff member at the CDP. She 
holds a MA Construction Supervisor's License and MA Home Improvement Contractor License.  She has over 15 
years of construction experience on Cape Cod including oversight of CDBG funded rehab projects and affordable 
housing rental rehab projects.  The accountant for the Housing Rehabilitation Program is a full time staff member at 
the CDP as well and has 20 years of experience in CDBG funded programs, state and federal housing programs and 
non-profit fund accounting procedures. 
 
Below is a detailed outline of the proposed construction oversight process 
 
Project Tracking and Team Collaboration - Progress for each project is tracked on a Schedule of Values stored in 
Dropbox, a secure, web-based document sharing program that is accessible, via controlled password, to the 
Program Staff, Rehab Specialist and Grant Administrator. The Schedule of Values is an integrated multi-sheet excel 
workbook that contains a Summary Page that tracks progress for the entire project, a Progress Payments Page that 
tracks each request for payment and work completed to date and a Change Order Page in the event that a change 
order is necessary.  This integrated system also ensures that projects are progressing along the agreed upon timeline, 
that funds are being expended in a timely manner and that payment amounts are accurate and in line with contract 
requirements. 



9 | P a g e        A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 
 

 
5.  Cont’d 
 

 
Construction Oversight - Construction oversight is performed by the Rehab Specialist who is on-site to inspect work 
while in progress and for final work completed, thus assuring that the work performed is in accordance with the 
specifications outlined in the detailed Work Write-Up and current code requirements. In addition, the Rehab 
Specialist ensures that the work is being performed in accordance with the timeline set forth in the Contract signed 
between the Contractor and Homeowner. Contractors are required to email photos of progress at various stages, 
such as the removal of an old roof.  This allows the Rehab Specialist to track how the work is progressing when not 
on-site and provides additional and easily accessible documentation for the homeowner. 
 
Payment Requests - The request for payment begins when the contractor presents the program staff with an 
invoice.  The invoice format follows the schedule of values format so that the staff can easily determine what work 
has been completed.  The program staff then enters the information from the invoice onto the summary page on 
the schedule of values which automatically generates the payment request. This payment request is then sent, via 
email, to the Rehab Specialist who schedules an inspection of the work. Assuming all the work is completed 
according to the specifications articulated in the detailed Work Write-Up, the required signatures are obtained and 
the invoice is processed. The invoice is attached to a payment request cover sheet along with the signed payment 
request.  Once the check is released, the entire package is scanned into Dropbox and saved in both the Program 
finance folder as well as the individual project folders. 
 
For most projects, contractors submit requests for payment four (4) times throughout project timeline. Final 
payments will not be made until all releases of liens and any required inspections are performed by the building 
inspector and the permits are signed. 
 
Project Closeout - At the project closeout, the results of any necessary water or environmental tests, septic or well 
tests and any product warrantees are collected and provided to the homeowner. All progress payments and invoices 
are included as well. In addition, the homeowner is provided with a contractor evaluation and a general program 
evaluation. The evaluations ensure that there is a continuous feedback loop to assess overall program quality, 
contractor performance and client satisfaction. 

6.    Assistance with Subsequent  
year’s funding 
a. Provide an updated  wait 

list, pre-applications and 
necessary information to 
highlight  need to 
continue program 

b. Provide letters of support  
to substantiate funding  
request 

c. Provide documentation 

Members of the Housing Rehab Program team have a solid track record of program and funding advocacy which 
includes providing written and oral testimony at public hearings attended by elected officials and DHCD staff 
policy makers, hosting legislative tours and other public relations events to promote general support for the 
Housing Rehabilitation Program.  The CDP’s  commitment to advocating for the Housing Rehab Program  
includes the following proposed activities  to support  subsequent funding  applications: 

 Conducting ongoing outreach and marketing for the program in order to provide an up to date wait list 
accompanied by completed pre-applications 

 Implementing a “fillable PDF form” available on the CDP’s website, to allow for greater ease in submitting a 
pre-application. 

 Collecting and providing letters of support from a variety of community sources including elected officials, 
community based organizations, other funding agencies, clients and contractors 



10 | P a g e        A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 
 

regarding marketing 
program 

 Providing copies of all marketing materials 

 Maintaining and providing a complete list of each information session, public speaking event, radio or TV 
show and advisory committee attended or hosted. 

All documentation needed to assist with subsequent year's funding will be stored in an administrative folder in Dropbox so that the 
Grant Administrator will have immediate and real time access to progress made toward funding requirements.  All documents needed 
for transfer of responsibilities from one agency to the next will be provided by the Grant Administrator.  

 



11 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

Section 3-Truro 

Minimum Evaluation Criteria and Technical Question 

 

1.   Has the proposer conformed in all material respects to the submission requirements as set forth    
  in the RFP? XX Yes  __ No 

All of the documentation requested in the RFP has been included in this proposal including a 
complete and detailed Scope of Work, evidence to satisfy the Minimum Evaluation Criteria and 
Technical Questions, a detailed response to the Comparative Evaluation Criteria, a separate Price 
Proposal, a Certificate of Tax Compliance, and a Certificate of Non-Collusion. 
 

2.      Does the proposer have a minimum of two years’ experience with CDBG Housing rehabilitation  
            grants?  XX Yes  __No 

 
The CDP meets the minimum criteria of two years’ experience having 18 years of direct 
organizational experience providing CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program Grants involving 435 
homes and over $10.9 M in funds. All three members of the CDP’s Housing Rehab team meet the 
minimum criteria of two years' experience with a collective total of over 31 years of CDBG Housing 
Rehabilitation Program grants.  In addition, the CDP has relevant experience with DHCD funded 
Housing Development projects, municipally funded Housing Rehab Programs, Community 
Preservation Act Funds and CDBG funded Economic Development Programs.  Below is a detailed 
breakdown of experience:  
 

CDP’s direct CDBG Funded Housing Rehab Experience 
 

History Units Funds 

FY 94 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 22 $231,772.00  

FY 95 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 5 $63,295.00  

FY 95 Provincetown Housing Rehab Program 21 $215,016.00  

FY 96 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 16 $194,305.00  

FY 97 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 15 $198,682.00  

FY 97 Provincetown Housing Rehab Program 12 $173,183.00  

FY 99 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 13 $234,819.00  

FY 00 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 12 $184,717.00  

FY 01 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 18 $226,881.00  

FY 02 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 22 $441,041.00  

FY 03 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 26 $685,960.00  

FY 04 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 36 $953,456.00  

FY 07 Wellfleet Regional Housing Rehab Program 28 $729,586.00  

FY 08 Wellfleet Regional Housing Rehab Program 19 $551,250.00  

FY 09 Wellfleet Regional Housing Rehab Program 20 $540,209.00  



12 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

FY 10 Wellfleet Regional Housing Rehab Program 16 $507,060.00  

FY 14 Truro Regional Housing Rehab Program 15 $511,283.00  

FY 14 Dennis Regional Housing Rehab Program 17 $480,183.00  

FY 15 Dennis Regional Housing Rehab Program 15 $510,879.00  

FY 15 Eastham Regional Housing Rehab Program 18 $540,175.00  

FY 15 Truro Regional Housing Rehab Program 22 $658,361.00  

FY 16 Dennis Regional Housing Rehab Program 15 $493,372.00  

FY 16 Truro Regional Housing Rehab Program 15 $458,652.00  

FY 17 Dennis Regional Housing Rehab Program 14 $520,223.00  

FY 17 Truro Regional Housing Rehab Program 17 $605,811.00  

Total Direct CDBG Funded Housing Rehab Experience 449 $10,910,071.00  
 
  
Other Relevant Housing Experience 
 

FY12 CDBG funded Housing Development Project – Site Work Oversight 
(Gull Pond, Wellfleet) 

5 homes 

FY12 Town of Eastham Self-Funded Housing Rehab  3 homes 

 
Development of Thankful Chases Pathways - A Platinum LEED new housing 
development project recognized in HUD National Door Knocker Award  
Competition 
 
Completion 
 

12 homes 

FY11 Winner of TD Bank's Housing for All Competition the initial grant to 
launch the $800,00 Real Return Initiative which utilizes 
philanthropic/municipal funds and Solar Renewable Energy Credits to 
finance a major rehab on over 30 of the CDP's rental units on the Lower 
Cape 
 

30 homes 

FY08 Gut Rehab of former commercial space and development of 
homeownership condos in Chatham 
 

4 homes 

  FY13-Present: Construction Monitor for Home Modification Loan Program, 
administered by South Middlesex Opportunity Council, (SMOC).  To date, 
overseen over $1.2 million in accessibility upgrades for income qualified 
homeowners. 

51 homes 

 

Other Relevant Experience  
 

FY09 Co-development of Cape Cod Fisheries Trust   Ongoing 

FY95 CDBG funded micro-loan program Ongoing 

FY96 CDBG funded micro-loan program Ongoing 

Operation of the Provincetown Business Development Center 1995-2005 

Operation of the Eastham Business Development Center 1995-2006 

 

3.  Does the proposer have a minimum of three references for confirmation of quality 
performance standards? XX    Yes __No 

 



13 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 

 

Reference  Category Name Contact Information 

Contractor Jack/Jeanne Lyons 
Cedar Crest Properties  
Owners 

 

72 Higgins Crowell Rd 
West Yarmouth, MA 02673 
(508)775-4066 
ccprop@comcast.net 
 Contractor  Michael Ferullo 

Ferullo Remodeling 
Owner 

40 Gristmill Path 
Marston Mills, Ma 02648 

(508)801-3532  

ferulloremodeling@comcast.net 

 Community 
Stakeholder 

Katherine Black 
Board Member 
Highland Affordable 
Housing 

PO Box 1065 
Truro, MA 02666 
(508) 977-6781 
katherinefblack@gmail.com 
 

Municipal 

Stakeholder 

Kevin Grunwald 
Chair 
Truro Housing Authority 
 

PO Box 259 
Truro, MA 02666 
(508) 349-7810 
kevshawn@comcast.net 

Municip   Community 
Stakeholder 

Hadley Luddy 
Executive Director 

 

Homeless Prevention Council 
14 Old Tote Road 
Orleans MA 02653 
(508)255-9667 
hadley@hpccapecod.org 

Community Partner Margaret Song 
Residential and 
Marketing Coordinator 
 

Cape Light Compact 
SCH. PO Box 427 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA  02630 
(508) 375-6843 
msong@capelightcompact.org 

State Funder Catherine Racer 

Associate Director 

Office of Housing & Community 
Development 
100 Cambridge Street 
Boston, MA 02114 
(617) 573-1300 
catherine.racer@state.ma.us 

mailto:ccprop@comcast.net
mailto:katherinefblack@gmail.com
mailto:cleon@comcast.net
mailto:catherine.racer@state.ma.us


14 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

Reference  Category Name Contact Information 

Elected Official Rep. Sarah K. Peake 
State Representative 
Fourth Barnstable district 

State Representative 
Fourth Barnstable District 
State House Room 163 
Boston, MA. 02133 
617-722-0554 
sarah.peake@mahouse.gov  
 

Elected Official Senator J u l i a n  C y r  
State Senator 
Cape & Islands district 

Patrick Johnson 
Chief of Staff 
Senator Julian Cyr, Cape & Islands 
Room 218 
State House, Boston MA 02133 
(617)722-1570 
Patrick.Johnson@masenate.gov 

 

 

 

mailto:sarah.peake@mahouse.gov


15 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

Section 4 - Truro 

Comparative Evaluation Criteria 

 

1.   Evaluation of Scope of Services 

The Scope of Services included in this proposal is comprehensive and provides clear and concise details on how 

the CDP team will address the administrative requirements of the town and effectively implement the 

specification for services. A step by step outline has been provided which easily demonstrates to the reader the 

major components of the program.  Samples of program materials have been included which demonstrate the 

readiness of the proposal to commence immediately. 

2.   Experience of Firm and its Management  

The CDP’s direct organizational experience in CDBG Housing Rehab spans 18 years, involves over 400 homes 

and exceeds $10.9 M in funds. The four member project personnel team included in this proposal is comprised 

of experienced professionals three of whom are full-time employees at the CDP; their combined experience 

spans over 31 years with CDBG grant program implementation for Housing Rehabilitation programs.  All four 

project personnel possess more than five years of CDBG Housing Rehabilitation grant program implementation 

experience. In addition to meeting the minimum criteria for CDBG program management experience, team 

members are experts in all aspects of affordable housing, marketing, construction supervision & oversight and 

project management.  Finally, team members are mission driven, have a track record of advocating for programs 

that improve the lives of low to moderate-income residents and developing positive community relations.  The 

team is made of the following individuals: 

Ann C. Robinson/Chief Program Officer and Director of Housing Rehab Program  
Full-Time Employee of the CDP 

ANN C. ROBINSON served for 22 years as Executive Director for Community Capital Fund, a community 

development financial institution located in Bridgeport, Connecticut.  From 1989 to 1993, Ann was Assistant, 

and then Executive Director of Bridgeport Neighborhood Housing and Commercial Services.  Prior to working in 

Bridgeport, Ann spent 8 years in Westport, CT as an attorney in private practice specializing in litigation.  Ann 

has an A.B. from Dartmouth College and a J.D. from Boston University School of Law. 

Ann has been a year round resident of South Chatham since 2017 and a part-time home owner for more than a 

decade.  She has been vacationing in South Chatham since she was an infant, so the Cape has been her second 

home for a long time.  

As the organization’s Program Officer, Ann oversees the planning, implementation and evaluation of the CDP’s 

small business development and housing programs.  She supervises the Business & Credit Program initiatives, 



16 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

First Time Home Buyers education and the Housing Rehabilitation Loan Programs.  Ann has 5.5 years of 

experience with CDBG housing rehabilitation grant implementation. For four years, Ann ran CDBG Housing 

Rehabilitation programs during her time at Bridgeport Neighborhood Housing and Commercial Services. For the 

past 1.5 years, she has been responsible for overseeing and managing the CDP’s Housing Rehab Program 

including marketing, community informational sessions, application intake and approval, and loan closings at 

the CDP. She compiles the bid results and works with the homeowner, rehab specialist and contractors to ensure 

all projects are within budget and DHCD program guidelines and oversees all phases of the project to assure on-

time project completion.  Ann provides quarterly reports to the Grant Administrator on the progress on fund 

expenditures.  Ms. Robinson spends 90% of her time managing the CDP’s Housing Rehab programs. 

Holly Tarleton/Housing Rehab Specialist 

Part-Time Contract Employee of the CDP 

Holly has a total of four years of experience CDBG housing rehabilitation grant implementation.  From November 

2014 to June 2017, Holly served as a General Contractor on 15 housing rehabilitation projects.  Holly has served 

as Housing Rehab Specialist for the CDBG funded Housing Rehabilitation Program at the CDP since June of 2017 

and is the lead staff member on the construction aspects of all projects.  Since she began working at the CDP, 

she has overseen over $1,500,000 in construction related developments.  These projects have been the 

rehabilitation of single and two family homes.  

The tasks associated with this role include conducting the initial rehab intake, creation of the Work Write-Up 

and project estimate, the contractor walk-through and bid review.  Once the job is awarded, Holly conducts 

ongoing inspections of the projects, and approves all payment and change order requests.  She is available at 

all times, throughout each project, for consulting with both the homeowner and the General Contractor.   

Holly has worked in the construction field for over 15 years, almost all of that time in the field. She is 

accomplished and knowledgeable in all phases of construction, including regulatory, code, permitting, energy 

efficiency measures and finances.  She holds a current Massachusetts Construction Supervisor's License, a 

Massachusetts Home Improvement Contractor’s License and has completed the final certification for De-leading 

Supervisor.  Holly Tarleton is a contract employee and is paid on a per project basis. 

Judith Valverde/ Chief Fiscal and Operations Officer 

Full-Time Employee of the CDP 

Judith Valverde has been working in non-profit accounting since 1994 and started with the Community 

Development Partnership in June of 1996. Originally serving as Fiscal Manager, she has served as the Fiscal and 

Operations Director for the past six years. In her role as Chief Fiscal and Operations Officer, Judith maintains the 

CDP’s fiscal functions for a $3.5 million budget, financial documentation and reporting, and 

administrative/personnel/fiscal policies.  

While at the CDP, Judith has had fiscal oversight of over 30 DHCD funded grants, including 18 years of experience 

with CDBG housing rehabilitation grant implementation for Housing Rehab loans involving over 400 homes. In 

addition to Economic Development, Housing Development, and Community Investment Tax Credit funding, 

Judith has extensive experience in providing fiscal oversight for funding from both the federal, state and local 

government, as well as private foundations and donors.  Judith spends 12% of her time managing the CDP’s 

Housing Rehab programs. 

Jay Coburn/ Chief Executive Officer 
Full-Time Employee of the CDP 



17 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

Over his six years at the CDP, Jay has lead the organization’s transformation into a vital community development 

agency addressing the key issues that threaten the sustainability of the Lower Cape as a vibrant year round 

community. Since 2012, the CDP’s annual budget has grown from $1.8 M to $3.4 M; support from individuals 

and businesses has grown from $25K to $350K; and the organization’s reserves have grown from $225K to 

$750K.  The CDP has launched two new micro-loan funds, started the Orleans Winter Farmers Market, trained 

125 municipal officials in housing production and overseen the management of nine CDBG Housing 

Rehabilitation grants totaling $4.4M and serving over 135 families.  He has a total of six years of experience with 

CDBG housing rehabilitation grant implementation, including four years of providing CDBG housing 

rehabilitation services and two years supervising a CDBG housing rehabilitation specialist     

Jay is responsible for the overall management and strategic direction of the organization.  He provides day to 

day supervision of the Chief Program Officer/Director of Housing Rehab Programs and the Chief Fiscal & 

Operations Officer.  Jay spends 30% of his time overseeing the CDP’s Housing Rehab programs. 

 3.  Availability to Meet with Town Representatives 

As a community-based, mission-driven organization, the CDP views collaboration with municipal partners as an 

important and integral part of meeting our mission.  Each member of the CDP team has developed positive 

working relationships with a variety of community stakeholders.  We look forward to strengthening these 

valuable connections as we work toward our community goals of helping low and moderate income households 

stabilize and improve their housing situation. Moreover, the CDP is a multi-service agency with professional and 

administrative staff on-site every weekday from 8:00am to 5:00pm. All members of the team for the Housing 

Rehabilitation Program will be available for consultation with the Town's Grant Administrator and/or Town 

Administrator and Members of the Board of Selectmen or relevant Town Advisory Committees at any time 

during normal business hours of 8:00am to 5:00pm or, with reasonable notice, early morning, evenings or 

weekend meetings.  The team is available to answer any questions about the program, review program 

documents and present program progress at Board of Selectmen meetings or Town Advisory Committee 

meetings. 

   4.   CDP Housing Rehab Program Clients 

The chart below contains a list of CDBG Housing Rehab Program Clients who attest to the quality of 

construction and program service provided in the past.  These clients worked directly and solely with the 

CDP.  In addition, several “Before and After” photographs are attached to illustrate the scope and 

breadth of the rehab completed for each home included. 

 

Authorized Client Reference  Contact Information 

 

“Thank you for helping make our home healthier and better 

looking.  In addition, Jack was an amazing contractor.  The 

house looks like a well-maintained version of its older self.  

The home is now completely lead-free, which was a safety 

concern.” 

 

 

Tracy Kachtick-Anders 

Phone: (646) 510-3098 

Email: vincentsear.art@gmail.com 

FY 2016 Recipient 



18 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

Authorized Client Reference  Contact Information 

 

“I feel like I can stay in my own home and manage my independence, 

live happily ever after…Jean Stanley is an amazing asset to the CDP 

and helped so much with everything.”  

 

 

Lani Idman 

Phone: 508-760-5820 

Email: N/A 

FY 2016 Recipient 

 
 

“My house is 42 years old and starting to show its age.  My income did 

not allow improvements and the house would have seriously 

deteriorated without the aid of this program.  It is a huge weight off 

my shoulders and a Godsend.  Thank you!” 

 

 

Claire Wagner-Kimball 

Phone: 508-398-3675 

Email: N/A 

FY 2016 Recipient 

  
“Jean Innocent & his laborers did a beautiful job.” 
 

 

Mardelle Lima 

Phone: 508-394-2692 

Email: N/A 

FY 2017 Recipient 

 

”The project was a dream come true. Because of our health 

issues we were in need of this kind of help at our home. 

Otherwise we might not have been able to stay in our home 

comfortably. …Thank you all so much.” 

 

Kathi E. Marissal and Paula Candage 

Phone: 508-487-0870 

Email: katpaula@comcast.net 

FY 2017 Recipients 

“This program and all of its participants have given me a new 

lease on life. The exterior and interior of my home now have a 

fresh beauty and are a striking enhancement to my 

neighborhood. Neighbors have been very complimentary and 

appear to have an added incentive to make positive changes to 

the appearance of their homes, …Words don’t adequately 

convey the happiness it has generated in my life.” 

 

 

Barbara Brown 

Phone: 508-432-5411 

Email: brownstreet37@comcast.net 

FY 2017 Recipient 

 

 

 

 

 

Before photos of a home in East Harwich bought by a young couple with 3 children. It was the couple’s 

first home. The house had been gutted and was uninhabitable. They came to the CDP before they 

bought it knowing that the roof was at the end of its useful life, the gutters were deteriorated, the trim 

was damaged, the windows were rotting, the shingles were deteriorating and the clapboards cracked. 

mailto:katpaula@comcast.net


19 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 



20 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 

 



21 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

After a new roof, windows, shingles, clapboard, trim and gutters. 

 

 

 



22 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 

The couple finished the inside with their own funds and sweat equity. 



23 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 



23 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

Ann C. Robinson 
 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Chief Program Officer & Director of Housing Rehabilitation Programs, Community 

Development Partnership 
Eastham, MA          2017 to present 

 Manage the day to day operations of two, Mass DHCD, CDBG funded Housing 
Rehabilitation programs. 

 Oversee the planning, implementation and evaluation of the CDP’s small business 
development and housing programs.   

 Supervise the Business and Credit Program initiatives, First Time Home Buyers 
education, Cape Community Housing Partnership and the Housing Rehabilitation 
Loan Programs.  

 Prepare applications for funding for business and housing programs. 

 Prepare reports to funders regarding use of grants and accomplishments. 

 Supervise four professional staff, serve on organization’s senior leadership team and 
provide support to Board of Directors and Loan Committee in developing policy and 
strategy.  

 
Executive Director, Community Capital Fund, Inc., f/k/a Bridgeport  
 Neighborhood Fund 
 Bridgeport, CT                                                                            1994 to 2016 

 Oversaw the daily operations of a non-profit Community Development Financial 
Institution that financed affordable housing and small business opportunities 
benefitting low and moderate-income people.   

 Negotiated agreements for loan capital with local and national banks,                
Fannie Mae, the State of Connecticut’s Department of Economic and Community 
Development, Community Development Block Grant and the US Environmental 
Protection Agency.  

 Grew Fund from $9 million to $19 million. 

 Managed merger of two CDFIs to create Community Capital Fund. 
 
Executive Director, Bridgeport Neighborhood Trust, Inc. 

Bridgeport, CT                                                                          1994 to 2009                                                                                                                                                       

 Oversaw the daily operations of a non-profit Community Housing Development 
Organization that developed affordable rental and ownership units, provided First 
Time Home Buyer education and counseling, created and managed the City of 
Bridgeport’s Lead Free Families abatement program, and advocated for affordable 
housing.     

 
 

P:  
E: ann@capecdp.org 

 



24 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 Oversaw reorganization resulting in organization becoming independent of 
Bridgeport Neighborhood Fund. 

 
Bridgeport Neighborhood Housing and Commercial Services, Inc., Bridgeport, CT 
Executive Director                                                                          1991 to 1993  

 Managed daily operations of a community-based organization which provided loans 
to low and moderate income homeowners in targeted neighborhoods for small 
housing rehabilitation projects financed with Community Development Block Grants 
(CDBG). Over four years at organization as both Assistant and Executive Director 
responsible for management of over $1 million in CDBG Housing Rehabilitation 
program grants.   

 Oversaw fiscal management of CDBG funds for loans for construction.  
 Supervised administrative assistant responsible for client intake. 
 Conducted income verification of borrowers. 
 Underwrote loans and presented them to loan committee. 
 Supervised rehabilitation specialist who managed the construction from 

inception to completion.  
 Approved all progress payments to contractors. 
 Attended final inspections of completed projects.   

Assistant Director                                                                             1989 to 1991 

 Created a program using volunteers for a one day blitz to repair multiple homes. 

 Conducted initial meetings with clients to determine eligibility for CDBG Housing 
Rehabilitation program. 

 Worked with clients to complete CDBG Housing Rehabilitation application 
paperwork. 

 Reviewed CDBG income verification documents for completeness. 

 Assisted Executive Director in fundraising and outreach. 
  
Sherwood, Garlick, Cowell, Diviney & Atwood, P.C., Westport, CT 
Principal                                                                                              1987 to 1989 

 Practiced law with a concentration in litigation and real estate.    
Associate                                                                                            1981 to 1987  
 

EDUCATION 
 

Boston University School of Law, Boston, MA                           Juris Doctor, 1981 
     
Dartmouth College, Hanover, NH                                                 Bachelor of Arts, 1978 
    



25 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 

 

CIVIC ACTIVITIES 
 
Mutual Housing of Southwestern Connecticut, Bridgeport, CT 
    Board member, member of the Loan Committee and Capital Committee 
 
Connecticut CDFI Alliance, Hartford, CT 
    Vice-President, member of the Loan Committee 
 
Bridgeport Neighborhood Trust, Bridgeport, CT 
     Member of the Development Advisory Board 



26 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

Holly Tarleton 
 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Housing Rehabilitation Specialist, Community Development Partnership  
 Eastham, MA       June 2017 - present 
Provide construction management and oversight for more than 30 Massachusetts Department of Housing 
and Community Development (DHCD) Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Housing 
Rehabilitation Projects. Provide all necessary tasks and documents for construction related activities 
including: Detailed specifications prioritizing lead paint abatement, building code safety corrections, 
building envelope repair and energy efficiency upgrades with accompanied project budget.  Provide 
consulting services to Housing Rehab Program Managers and homeowners, as well as job site visits 
throughout entire project timeline, payment and change order approvals as well as final project sign off.  

 
Art of Construction, Orleans, MA 
President (2003 - Present) 
 
General contracting firm doing framing, window and door installation, extensive interior and exterior 
remodeling, roofing, decking and siding. From November 2014 to June 2017, served as General Contractor 
on fifteen (15) CDBG funded housing rehab projects.  
 

PROFESSIONAL LICENSES, CERTIFICATIONS & TRAINING 
General Contracting Licenses: 

Construction Supervisor License (103566) 
Home Improvement Contractor (168132)  

 
Lead-Paint Training and Certifications: 
 Lead Safe Renovator-Supervisor (September 2015) 
 Moderate Risk Deleading (September 2015) 
  

ORGANIZATIONAL MEMBERSHIPS 
              Business Networking International (since 2012) 
 

PROFESSIONAL REFERENCES 
John Vincent 
Mid-Cape Home Centers 
465 Route 134 
S. Dennis, MA 02660 
(508) 398-6071 
 

Kim Bourgea 
HECH 
120 Route 128 
W. Harwich, MA 02671 
(508) 432-0015 
kim@hech.org 

 

 
EDUCATION 

Nauset Regional High School 



 
P:  

E:  
 



27 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

Judith Valverde 
 
 
          
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Chief Fiscal & Operations Officer, Community Development Partnership  
 Eastham, MA       May 1996 - present 

 Responsible for all fiscal operations for non-profit regional community development 
corporation with a $3.4 Million Annual Budget funded through government and private 
sector grants, individual donors and program income. Monitor fiscal compliance of all 
funding. Develop annual corporate budget and individual program budgets for funding 
applications. Prepare monthly and quarterly financial statements. Report to Chief 
Executive Officer and support Finance Committee and Board of Directors. Work with 
auditors on an annual basis. 

 Over a span of 22 years, managed accounting and reporting for twenty-five (25) 
Massachusetts Department of Housing & Community Development (DHCD) Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Housing Rehab grants totaling $10.2 M. 

 Accomplishments include: Developing Company on Peachtree Software. Customizing 
financial statements utilizing accounting software. Designed and developed CDP’s 
accounting manual.  

 
Accounts Payable Accountant, November 1994 to May 1996 
Housing Assistance Corporation 

 Responsible for all aspects of accounts payable including weekly and monthly check 
runs. Prepared and entered all adjusting and recurring general journal entries. 
Maintained fixed asset register, tagged acquisitions and monitored locations. Monitored 
cash on a daily basis, transferred funds as necessary. Worked with auditors on a daily 
basis. 

 Accomplishments include: recreating six-week gap in accounts payable module after 
hard drive crash. Creation of fixed asset register. 

 
Fiscal Officer, (Interim/Acting 12/95 to 2/96 & 4/97-7/97) 
Legal Services for Cape Cod and the Islands 
 
Customer Service Supervisor, April 1994 to November 1994 
Friendly’s Restaurant 
 
Accounts Receivable Cashier, September 1991 to August 1993 
Highlander NCO Club, CAFB NM 
 
Supervisory Office Clerk, Personnel and Payroll, February 1990 to August 1990 
US Census, Portsmouth, NH 



 



28 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 
Independent Fee Appraiser, February 1987 to August 1990 
PW Research Associates, Portsmouth, NH 
 
Listor/Assessor, Revaluation, April 1988 to November 1989 
Town of Eliot 
 
US Air Force, 1978-1982 
Honorably Discharged at rank of Sergeant December 17, 1982 
 
EDUCATION & SKILLS: 
· Working Knowledge of Peachtree, One Write Plus, MAS90, Construction Management, 

Great Plains Dynamics, Excel, Lotus and Word. 
·      Continuing College Education inclusive of Accounting I and Accounting II. 
 



29 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

Jay H.S. Coburn 
 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Chief Executive Officer, Community Development Partnership  
 Eastham, MA        December 2012 - 
present 

 Lead regional Community Development Corporation serving Lower Cape Cod.  Oversee 
agency’s programs to provide 72 units of affordable housing; preserve affordable 
housing through CDBG Housing Rehab Programs; and support sustainable economic 
development through micro-loans and business development services.   

 Supervise Director of Housing Rehab in the management and program delivery of nine 
CDBG Housing Rehab Grants from November 2014 to the present.  Supervised Housing 
Rehab Specialist from December 2012 to November 2014. 

 Currently oversee a staff of twelve professionals and manage an annual budget of $3.4 
million funded through government and private sector grants, individual donors and 
program income.  Increased individual/business support from $37,000 to over $300,000 
in 4 years. 

 
State Senator Daniel Wolf 
 Cape Cod, MA       May 2010 - present 
  Political Director       August 2011-present 

o Developed & implemented fundraising initiatives including special events, direct 
mail & major donor cultivation and solicitation.  Raised over $140,000 from 400+ 
donors in 12-month period. 

o Managed re-election campaign of State Senator Daniel Wolf.  Recruited, trained 
and supervised 10 volunteers.  Maintained campaign website and social media 
presence. 

o Provided strategic political advice to Senator Wolf and maintained his 
relationships with political activists in his District and throughout the 
Commonwealth.   

  Director of Community Relations-Mass State Senate  Jan 2010-Aug 2011 
o Developed, implemented and maintained constituent services program. 
o Maintained Senator Wolf’s relationships with elected officials and community 

leaders on the Outer & Lower Cape. 
o Provided staff support to Senator Wolf’s work on the following committees:  

Environment, Natural Resources & Agriculture; Tourism, Arts & Cultural 
Development, and Healthcare Financing.   

  Finance Co-Chair, Committee-Committee to Election Daniel  May – Dec. 2010 
o Co-led Finance Committee for first-time State Senate candidate.  Raised over 

$200,000 from 1,200 donors in 8 months. 



 
C:  

 E:  
 



30 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

Interim Executive Director, Southeastern Massachusetts Agricultural Partnership, Inc. 
 East Wareham, MA      June 2009 – April 2010 

 Led regional nonprofit with mission to advocate for and support family farms in 
southeastern Massachusetts.   

 Helped organization manage 40% reduction in annual funding and initiated a strategic 
planning and re-positioning process. 

 Worked closely with 10-member Operating Board to expand their fund raising skills and 
recruit new Board Members. 

 Raised over $50K in 7 months through corporate & government grants and individual 
donors.  

 Developed and maintained relationships with key Federal and State legislators and 
governmental officials. 

Sabbatical 
 Truro, MA       November 2006-July 
2009 

 Developed and operated private chef business. 

 Ski Instructor/Children’s Program Manager, Stowe Mountain Resort, Stowe, VT, Winter 
Season ’07-’08, ’08-’09 & ’09-10. 

 Board Member, Wellfleet Harbor Actors Theater – Chair of the 25th Anniversary Special 
Events Committee – raised $100K through several special events. 

 
Executive Chef & Co-Owner, CHESTER Restaurant 
 Provincetown, MA      May 1998-October 2006 

 Co-founded the Outer Cape’s most highly acclaimed restaurant, a 65-seat seasonal 
American fine dining establishment. 

 Responsible for the day-to-day management of the restaurant’s “back-of-house” 
operations.  Developed business plan and kept books for the business with $700K in 
annual revenue and up to 20 employees. 

 Developed and managed relationships with local farmers & fisherman to source local 
products. 

 
Health Policy Consultant 
 Washington, DC & Provincetown, MA   1996 - 1998   

 Worked with a variety of clients, including U.S. Public Health Service, AIDS Action 
Council, and Kaiser Family Foundation to evaluate HIV prevention and care programs, 
and to recommend policy and advocacy initiatives. 

 
Senior Lobbyist, Project Director, AIDS Action Council & Other Non-Profits Agencies 
 Washington, DC      1986-1996 

 Advocated and testified before the U.S. Congress and Federal Agencies on behalf of 
people living with AIDS.  Lobbied for increased federal funding for AIDS prevention, 
treatment & research.  Monitored annual federal budget process. 



31 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 Created and directed Pedro Zamora AIDS Public Policy Fellowship, a structured, 
experiential learning program for undergraduates.  Responsible for the recruitment and 
selection of fellows.  Supervised and evaluated fellows’ work. 

 Directed National HIV Prevention Training Program for community-based professionals 
working with runaway & homeless youth.  Raised over one million dollars annually from 
government, corporate and foundation sources. 

 
PUBLIC & COMMUNITY SERVICE 
 
Select Board, Town of Truro        2012-2018  
Served as Select Board Chair from 2013-2015 and led search process to hire a new Town 
Administrator. Serve as liaison to Truro’s Housing Authority, Energy Committee, Cable & 
Internet Advisory Committee, Agricultural Commission, and Planning Board. 
Vice Chair, Massachusetts Rural Policy Advisory Commission   2016-
present 
Board Member, Philanthropy Partners of the Cape & Islands   2014-
present 
Member, Public Policy Committee, Massachusetts Association of Community  2013-
present 
 Development Corporations        
Advisory Board Member, Mass Housing Partnership Rural Initiative  2014-2015 
Member, Policy Board Cape & Islands Regional Network on Homelessness  2012-2018 
Vice-Chair, Planning Board, Town of Provincetown     1998-2000 
Board Member, Wellfleet Harbor Actors Theater, Cape Cod, MA   2008-2010 
Board Member, AIDS Support of Group of Cape Cod, MA    1998-2000 
 
EDUCATION 
Cornell University, Ithaca, NY       
 1986 
 B.S. Human Development and Family Studies 
 

 
 
 



32 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

 
 

The law firm of Nutter McClennen & Fish LLP has a 
substantial commercial real estate and land use practice that 
extends into the most complex transactions and developments 
with long-standing reputation for business savvy and 
pragmatism. They serve as a go-to partner, helping clients 
manage a mix of challenges and achieve critical legal 
solutions. Partner involvement, availability and leadership are 
defining characteristics of Nutter. 
 

In the specific areas of real estate and land use their clients 
include owners, operators, lenders, developers, managers, 
brokers, institutional investors, governmental authorities and 
quasi-governmental organizations, hospitals and other health 
care providers, educational institutions, and other not-for-
profit entities. There clients are represented before federal, 
regional, state, and local governmental authorities, boards and 
agencies (including the Cape Cod and Martha's Vineyard 
Commissions), local zoning boards and planning boards, the 
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection, 
Massachusetts Executive Office of Environmental Affairs, 
and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.  
 

Nutter covers a wide spectrum of legal and financial matters 
for their clients.  Particular to our proposal these include but 
are not limited to: 
• Obtain zoning, wetlands, subdivision, and other 
governmental approvals  
• Analyze the environmental risks associated with various 
properties  
• Negotiate insurance policies and environmental 
agreements such as indemnities covenants not-to-sue, and 
activity and use limitations  
• Structure and close construction, interim and permanent 
mortgage loan financings for lenders and borrowers 
 

http://www.nutter.com/


33 | P a g e    A  P r o p o s a l  f o r  H o u s i n g  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  S e r v i c e s  
 

 

Eliza Cox is a partner in the Real Estate and Finance 
Department and a member of the Land Use practice group. 
Based out of both the firm’s Hyannis and Boston offices, she 
concentrates her practice on land use and zoning law. Eliza 
represents individual homeowners, non-profit organizations, 
private corporations and national developers before local 
zoning and planning boards, conservation commissions, and 
other municipal boards and commissions and she has 
extensive experience before the Cape Cod Commission.  
Eliza’s representative work includes: 
 
Hardship exemption from the Cape Cod Commission and a 
cluster subdivision special permit from a planning board for a 
19-lot residential subdivision 
Development of Regional Impact permit from the Cape Cod 
Change of Use Exemption permit from the Cape Cod 
Commission and local permits for the international 
headquarters of a not-for-profit organization 
Eliza was instrumental in reviewing the Cape Cod 
Commission’s 2009 Regional Policy Plan and supplying 
suggested language and testimony before the full Cape Cod 
Commission. In addition, Eliza co-authored “A Battlefield 
Over Growth” for a land use conference on growth 
management issues affecting Cape Cod and Massachusetts. 
 
Eliza was named an Up & Coming Lawyer in 2010 by 
Massachusetts Lawyers Weekly and the Massachusetts Bar 
Association. She also received the 2009 Public Service Award 
from the Yarmouth Area Chamber of Commerce. Eliza is a 
member of the Massachusetts and Barnstable Bar 
Associations.   
 
An active member of the Cape community, Eliza serves as 
Chairman of the Board for the Hyannis Area Chamber of 
Commerce, and serves on the board of trustees of the YMCA 
of Cape Cod and the Cape Cod Economic Development 
Council, Inc. 

1471 Iyannough Road 
P.O. Box 1630 

Hyannis, MA 02601 







 
 

Creating opportunities for people to live, work, & thrive on the Lower Cape 

 

 

 

NEED REPAIRS TO YOUR HOME?  
We Can Help! 

The Community Development Partnership (CDP) has opportunities available through the 
Housing Rehabilitation Program in Dennis, Harwich, Eastham, Truro and 
Provincetown.   

 
Funds up to $40,000 are available to eligible residents to pay for critical home repairs, like: 
 

• Roofing and Siding 
• Electrical 
• Heating and Plumbing Work 
• Structural Repairs 
• Lead Paint Abatement 
• Energy Efficiency Upgrades such as windows and storm doors 

The CDP staff works with the homeowners through every step of the process, from planning 
the work to completion.  Program contractors are licensed and insured. Funding is limited 
and available on a first-come, first-served basis.   

Our website has a host of information about the program - www.capecdp.org.  We 
recommend starting there.  The first step is to determine eligibility for the program.  That is 
done by filling out the pre-application available on the website or on the back of this page. 

Director of Housing Rehab Programs, Ann Robinson is also available to answer questions and 
provide guidance.  You can reach her at (508) 240-7873 X14 or ann@capecdp.org. 

 

 

 

3 Main Street Mercantile, Unit 7  Eastham, MA  02642 
P 508.240.7873  F 508.240.5085  E ann@capecdp.org 

www.capecdp.org 
 

The Housing Rehabilitation Program is made possible by Community Development Block Grant 
funds provided by the MA Department of Housing and Community Development.  

 

Housing Rehabilitation Program 

http://capecdp.org/
http://www.capecdp.org/content/programs_and_services/housing_programs/housing-rehab-program/
http://www.capecdp.org/
http://www.capecdp.org/


 
 

Creating opportunities for people to live, work, & thrive on the Lower Cape 

 

Your Board of Selectmen is pleased to announce that the Town is able to bring you the 
Regional Housing Rehabilitation Program with funds provided by the Massachusetts 
Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD).  The program is 
designed to improve the housing conditions of income qualified households by addressing 
code violations.  Critical repairs include but are not limited to: roof and siding, electrical and 
plumbing, insulation and heating replacement and weatherization upgrades to name a few.  If 
you are interested in participating in this program, please fill out this form and return it to the 
address listed below. 
 

 Name:___________________________________Phone: _________________ 
 

Address: ________________________________________________________ 
 

E-mail Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 

On the table below please: 
 

     -Circle the number of people in your household and then circle your total household  
       income in the last twelve (12) months - equal to or less than the amount indicated below. 
 

Family Size 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Very Low Income 30,200 34,500 38,800 43,100 46,550 50,000 53,450 56,900 

Low Income 48,300 55,200 62,100 68,950 74,500 80,000 85,500 91,050 
 

Are you a year round resident? Yes____ No____   Do you own your home?   Yes__No__     
 

Is this address your primary residence? Yes__ No__ Or are you the landlord? Yes__No__   
 

Is anyone living in your household over the age of 65?  Yes_____        No______ 
 

What year was your house built?  __________? Are you on fuel assistance?  Yes__ No__    
 

Do you have any problems with the following? 
 

� Roof � Plumbing � Electrical 
� Doors & Windows � Hot Water � Heat 
� Insulation � Foundation � Flooring 
� Structural Repairs � Septic System � Ceilings 

 

Comments: 
 

RETURN TO: Community Development Partnership 
3 Main Street Mercantile, Unit 7, Ph: 508-240-7873 ext.14 

Ann Robinson, Director of Housing Rehab Programs; ann@capecdp.org 

http://capecdp.org/


 

   RECEIVE       $40,000 
       UP TO          per unit 

 
If  your home needs critical repairs, like: 

THIS PROGRAM IS FOR YOU! 
 

CDP staff  works with the homeowners 
through every step of  the process, from 

planning the work to completion.  
Funding is limited and available on a first 

come first serve basis.  Don’t wait! 
 

APPLY NOW 
Phone: 508.240.7873 ext. 13 
Email: ann@capecdp.org 

Program Eligibility 

    Homeowners 

 Must own their own home; be a 
good year round resident; be in 
good standing with federal, state 
& local taxes; and carry 
homeowner’s insurance. 

 Must earn at or below 80% of  
the area median income (see 
chart below) 

 One fifteenth (1/15) of  the 
assistance you receive is forgiven 
each year that you continue to 
own and occupy your home. 

 

 Income Eligibility 

 

 

 

 

 

*Please inquire about income eligibility for families 

larger than four. 

 

 

 

3 Main Street Mercantile, Unit 7, Eastham, MA  02642 

P 508-240-7873  F 508-240-5085 

E ann@capecdp.org 

www.capecdp.org 

ATTENTION HOMEOWNERS 

AND LANDLORDS  

Roofing & Siding 

Heating & 

Plumbing 

Energy Efficiency 

Upgrades 

Windows & Doors 

Minor Structural 

Repairs 

Lead Paint 

abatement 

This program is funded through a regional grant submitted 

by the Truro Board of Selectmen to the MA Department of 

Housing and Community Development. 

Family Size* Income 

1 $48,300 

2 $55,200 

3 $62,100 

4 $68,950 



Need repairs to
your home? 

The Community Development
Partnership has funding
available now for critical

home repairs. Up to $40,000
per eligible home. 

“The transformation of my home has
been a godsend. The program has

alleviated a great deal of stress,
worry, and downright danger."



Our experienced staff
work with homeowners
through every step of

the process. Funding is
for income el igible year-

round homeowners.

Contact  Ann Robinson 
508.240.7873 x13 
ann@capecdp.org 

APPLY NOW 

WWW.CAPECDP.ORG C
o
m
m
u
n
ity

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

  
- 
3

 M
a
in

 S
tr
e
e
t M

e
rc
a
n
til
e
, U
n
it 
7

  
E
a
st
h
a
m
, M

A
 0
2
6
4
2

 Home Repairs Include: 

Roofing & Siding
Energy Efficient  
Windows & Doors
Heating & Septic Systems 

(but not limited to) 



Regional CDBG Grant guidelines  

 

 
Promoting a vibrant and diverse community on Lower Cape Cod 

 
REGIONAL CDBG GRANTS 

 

Serving year-round LMI (low-moderate income) residents of 
Dennis, Harwich, Eastham, Truro and Provincetown 

 
To be funded through a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) from the 

MA Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) 
 

PRIORITIES OF THE PROGRAM ARE TO: 
 

☼Correct and update health/safety issues, building envelope updates, energy efficiency upgrades, address 
lead paint hazards in residences owned and occupied year-round by LMI residents☼ 

 
☼Improve the supply of affordable-rent units for year-round LMI tenants☼ 

 
Up to $40,000 per unit is available for properties in Dennis, Harwich, Eastham, Truro and Provincetown. 

 
 

PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
 
The CDP Housing Rehab Loan Program is funded through an annual Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) awarded by the MA Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) to help preserve 
existing housing stock for year-round residents of Dennis, Harwich, Eastham, Truro and Provincetown. The 
program addresses critical repairs on private homes, owner-occupied and investor-owned rental units - who 
income qualify according to LMI (low-moderate income) guidelines set by HUD (per income tables at the end 
of this document). 

 
The Community Development Partnership (CDP) is a non-profit agency that over the past few decades has 
been involved in the delivery of several grant rounds of CDBG Funds. This responsibility includes all 
implementation, monitoring and reporting tasks according to DHCD guidelines on behalf of the Grantee. In the 
FY 2017 grants, the expected grantees are: the Town of Truro for the Harwich, Eastham, Truro and 
Provincetown Regional Grant and the Town of Dennis. 

 
 
GRANT PRACTICES AND PRIORITIES: 

 
It is part of the CDP’s mandate to identify and solicit eligible applications from property owners in Dennis, 
Harwich, Eastham, Truro and Provincetown. We do this through a variety of outreach initiatives, which 
include working with the active support of community partners in the participating towns. 



Regional CDBG Grant guidelines  

Applications for loans are processed on a first-come, first-served basis. Once qualified, a project may be 
assessed and ranked against other qualified applications in terms of code priorities; any emergency need takes 
priority (e.g., failed heating system in winter). On occasion, the CDP must reject applications despite the 
presence of eligible work. Reasons for this may include: lack of program funds; conditions requiring substantial 
rehab beyond scope of the program; costs exceeding program limits; title issues; ineligible tenants; and factors 
that suggest the borrower may be unable to comply with the terms of the program. 

 
I. PROPERTY GUIDELINES 

 
A. Owner-Occupied Single-Family Units (Primary Residence) 

 

1. Declining loans structured as mortgages are made to owner-occupied single-family units to 
cover essential upgrades on a primary residence. The declining loan is secured by a property 
lien recorded at the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds. This lien is removed by a mortgage 
discharge after 15 years of compliance by the borrower has passed; the loan balance declines 
by 1/15th in each year of compliance until it reaches zero. 

2. Borrowers must hold title to the property (LMI life tenants may apply as long as owner agrees 
and signs). 

3. All those named on a deed must agree to the loan by signing all legal documents even if they do 
not occupy the premises. 

4. The maximum loan amount of $40,000 is available to rehab dwellings only. 
5. All loans are developed within a “moderate” rehabilitation framework for code, health and 

safety upgrades. 
6. Borrowers must meet LMI income guidelines set out in the chart below according to household 

size. 
7. Borrowers whose property does not remain their primary residence throughout the loan term 

must either pay back the loan balance or rent the property to a LMI tenant year-round at a fair 
market rent set by HUD. 

8. No penalties will be assigned as long as borrowers remain in compliance and notify the CDP of 
any changes of property status. (Participating Towns will document compliance annually, by 
letter, for the term.) 

9. The borrower may sell the property during the 15-year term. Upon the sale or transfer of the 
property, the owner will repay the unforgiven portion of the loan. (Participating Towns allocate 
this income to community projects.) 

10. Direct heirs may assume the loan and its obligations if title to the property transfers before 
term ends. They may live in the property, find eligible LMI year-round tenants for the property, 
or sell the property and pay back the remaining balance due. 

11. On occasion, borrowers are permitted or may be required to provide a portion of total costs; 
such funds are the sole responsibility of the property owner and must be verified prior to loan 
approval. 

 
B. Rental Units: Single, Multi--Family, or Accessory Units in a Single-Family Residence 

 

1. Declining loans structured as mortgages are made to owners of units in existing buildings to be 
upgraded rental units that house LMI (low-moderate income) tenants year-round at fair market 
rents set by HUD. 

2. The loan is secured by a property lien recorded at the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds. This 
lien is removed by a mortgage discharge after 15 years of compliance by the borrower has 
passed; the loan declines in each year of compliance by 1/15th until the balance reaches zero. 



Regional CDBG Grant guidelines  

3. The 15-year deed restriction remains with the property for the full term of the loan. In the 
event of a sale, the buyer must assume the rental restriction on the property for the remainder 
of term of the loan. 

4. Direct heirs may assume the loan and its obligations if title to the property transfers before 
term ends. 

5. Properties with up to 7 rental unit(s) may be eligible for funding of up to $40,000 per unit if 
they are not already deed-restricted as “affordable.” Decisions on rental units are based on the 
income of the owner and tenant(s) in the property, the degree of construction required, and 
availability of program funds. 

6. Landlords who qualify within LMI guidelines are eligible to apply for loans which will cover 
100% of the rehab costs. 

7. Landlords who are determined to be “above income” may apply for loan covering up to 50% of 
the rehab costs; they must contribute the other 50%. 

8. Landlords must have income-certified existing or prospective tenant(s) in order to qualify for a 
loan. The CDP provides forms for certification; tenant selection otherwise is the sole 
responsibility of the landlord. 

9. Participating Towns perform an annual audit by letter, including verification of tenants and 
rents, throughout the 15-year term of the loan. (Non-compliance by owners risks default 
penalties.) 

10. Acquisition of zoning variances and special permits are the sole responsibility of the property 
owner. 

 
II. HOUSING REHABILITATION LOAN TERMS 

 
A. Up to $40,000 per owner-occupied or rental unit is conveyed in a declining Deferred Forgivable 

Loan (DFL) at 0% interest for a 15-year term, secured by a property lien recorded at the Barnstable 
County Registry of Deeds. 

B. The 0% DFL is forgiven (declines) by 1/15th annually, as long as the borrower(s) remain in 
compliance. The entire loan is forgiven and the recorded mortgage is discharged at term end. 

C. Loan-related costs are included in the DFL and are reflected in closing documents, including but not 
limited to recording fee, credit check,  and lead inspection  fees. Closing costs generally range 
between $200 and $1,000. 

D. A key aspect of this program is the ability to “leverage” funds to supplement funding by the CDP 
Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program. Cape Cod Five Cents Savings Bank offers up to $50,000 for 
loans at more competitive rates than otherwise offered. Other possible sources of leveraged funds 
include: property owner’s funds; Barnstable County Septic Loan Program; DOE’s Weatherization 
Program, “HEARTWAP” heating assistance program, Cape Light Compact, and Keyspan Energy 
programs all offered through Housing Assistance Corp; USDA Section 504 loan/grant program; and 
South Middlesex Opportunity Council’s Home Modification Program. 

 
III. PROPERTY CODE, HEALTH AND SAFETY REPAIRS AND UPGRADES 

 
The first priority of the program is to correct all code violations, structural and sanitary; this includes deleading 
if circumstances require it. Within DHCD guidelines, the program covers the repairing/upgrading of exterior 
items, including roofs, trim, gutters, entry doors, et al. Improving energy efficiency is also a key program goal. 
All repairs and upgrades must align with State, Federal and local building and safety codes and be approved 
according to State and local historic and environmental regulations. Some examples of typical rehabilitation 
work performed include: roof and siding replacement or repairs, window and door upgrades, well and septic 
replacements, weatherization and heating upgrades, electrical and plumbing upgrades, handicapped 
accessibility, and egress improvements. 



Regional CDBG Grant guidelines  

Certain code deficiencies must be addressed regardless of client expectations if program funds are to be made 
available at all. These are determined in advance as part of an overall work plan agreed with the client. Typical 
small maintenance repairs, cosmetic upgrades and/or remodeling are not program-approved uses of CDBG 
funds. 

 
IV. PROGRAM TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE ON PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION 

 
The CDP Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program develops and implements projects through the services of 
licensed and insured rehab specialists and general contractors who have registered their credentials, including 
excellent references, to the staff program manager. The housing rehab specialist inspects the property and 
prepares a work write-up based on code issues that are present, in consultation with the homeowner and 
within DHCD budget limits. The work write-up is submitted to the homeowner for review and agreement 
before being sent out to bid by general contractors registered with the program. Once a project is under 
contract and construction, the CDP rehab specialist and program manager, or their designee, inspect the 
ongoing work through to completion of the project. 

 
V. REQUIRED INCOME DOCUMENTATION 

 
In addition to providing information requested on the application form, complete, accurate and up-to-date 
documentation of income is required of all applicants according to your particular circumstances. 

 
We recommend that you read through completely the notes charted on page 4 to understand what is required. 
Please call the Program Manager with questions so that she can help you avoid unnecessary delays. 

 
 Income documentation is required for all members of the household 18+ years old and must be submitted 

before the CDP can perform the initial review. 
 Provide photocopies of all documents, not originals. 
 Some documentation requires notarization. Notaries can be found at most local banks and Town offices. 

 
Please return a fully completed, signed and dated application form, including all information requested ,  
along with the following valid documents: 

 
 

Salaried income or Unemployment income - for all Household Members 18+ years old 
 
1. Pay stubs for most recent 8-week period for every member of your household working for an employer. 
2. Pay stubs for most recent 8-week period weeks of Unemployment Benefits. 
3. Full-time students or unemployed household members must provide a notarized statement affirming this 
status. 
  Self-employment income - for all Household Members 18+ years old 

 
1. Copies of your entire IRS Tax Return 1040 for 2015 and 2016. NOTE: We do NOT need MA Tax Returns. 
2. If the self-employed earner does not file taxes, a Notarized Statement reflecting earnings and expenses for 
2015 & 2016, including dates, addresses of jobs, amounts paid, related expenses - to determine net profit. 

 
 

OTHER INCOME: Verification of other income as applicable to Household Members 18+ years old 
Benefit statements for Public Assistance, VA, Unemployment, SS, SSI, disability and a verification letter or 
periodic statement from each pension/investment income source stating the amount and frequency of 
benefits. 



Regional CDBG Grant guidelines  

Child Support, either 1) Child Support Order and Divorce Decree; or 2) Notarized Statement that you are not 
receiving child support. 

 

ALL applicants and household members 18+ years old must submit: 
 

1. Complete financial statements: spanning the past 2 months for any/all checking, savings, investment and 
retirement accounts. 

 
2. Copies of signed 1040 Tax Returns for tax years 2015 & 2016. Please include Schedule C if you are self- 
employed and/or Schedule E if you receive rental income. 

 
3.IRS Verification: “T ax Retu r n T r anscrip ts” for every adult for tax years 2015 & 2016: You are responsible 
for obtaining your IRS Tax Return Transcripts for tax years 2015 & 2016. Please refer to the 3 Easy Options 
Guide included in this packet. When ordering your Tax Return Transcript, please use the same information 
used when filing your 1040 return. If you do not file taxes because your taxable income is not sufficient to 
meet the minimum filing requirements, you must select the request a Verification of Non-Filing option. Your 
Tax Return Transcript will be sent to you directly. Please forward this information onto the CDP in order to 
complete your qualification. Eligibility cannot be determined without this information. 

 
INCOME GUIDELINES 

 
LMI (low-moderate income) limits for Barnstable County 

 

Below are the total allowable LMI (low-moderate income) limits per size of household for qualifying for the 
CDP Housing Rehab Loan Program. LMI limits are set by HUD at 80% average median income for Barnstable 
County. Total income means income from all Adults 18 years old or over living in the household. Household 
size means and children living in a household regardless of their relationship. 

 
Landlords or potential landlords who are above LMI Income are eligible to provide and receive matching funds 
up to  $40,000 per unit to  rehab or create a unit for year-round rental to house LMI tenants per HUD  
guidelines. 

 
FY2018 HUD AREA MEDIAN INCOMES 

 1 PERSON 2 PERSON 3 PERSON 4 PERSON 5 PERSON 6 PERSON 7 PERSON 8 PERSON 
80% 
AMI 48,300 55,200 62,100 68,950 74,500 80,000 85,500 91,050 



 

 

 
 

HOUSING REHAB LOAN PROGRAM HOMEOWNER DOCUMENTATION CHECK LIST 

REQUIRED INCOME DOCUMENTATION 
 

  Completed application   _Interest 
 

  8 Weeks of Pay stubs or letter   _Alimony 
 

  Unemployment-Monetary Determination/Weekly deposits   _Foster Care 
 

 Veteran’s Benefits/Current Year Letter  _Worker’s Comp. 
 

  _Social Security/Current Year Benefit Letter   Non-Income 
 

  Pension (2Mo.s Statements or 1099 if no statements)   Other Income (Explain) 
 

  Child Support (Divorce Decree) 
 

  Bank Statements – Checking & Savings (2Mo.s Recent Statements, all pages) 
 

  Investment Account Statements (2Mo.s Recent Statements, all pages) 
 

  _IRAs & 401Ks Account Statements (2Mo.s Recent Statements, all pages) 
 
REQUIRED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

  Copy of the property Deed 
 

  2 most recent years 1040 IRS TAX RETURNS signed & filed. 
 

  2 most recent years SELF-EMPLOYED – Schedule C 2 most recent years INCOME FROM RENTAL –Schedule E 
 

  2 most recent years IRS TAX RETURN TRANSCRIPTS. Forward to CDP upon receipt (see instructions) 
 

  Copy of First two pages of Mortgage   Copy of First two pages of Home Equity 
 

  Copy of Entire Reverse Mortgage Doc.   Copy of most recent Loan Statement of a 
Reverse Mortgage 

  PROOF OF PAID PROPERTY & FLOOD INSURANCE (PROOF FROM INS. CO.) 
 

  PROOF OF PAID REAL ESTATE TAXES (PRINT OUT FROM THE TOWN REQURED) 
 

 Complete copy of Trust Documents – if applicable 
 

  Complete copy of Condo Documents – if applicable 
 

****PLEASE NOTE W-2’ S, 1099 ’S , YEARLY SUMMARIES UPON REQUEST ONLY 



Page 1  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP 

HOUSING REHAB LOAN PROGRAM APPLICATION 

 

Applicant Information 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Present Address 

Street: 

Own 

Rent 

City/Town: Number 

of Years State: Zip Code: 
Mailing Address 

Street:  SAME 

Married 

Widowed 

Separated 

Divorced 

City/Town: 

State: Zip Code: 
Email Address: Number Dependents living at home: 

Ages Dependents living at home: 

 
Home Phone Number:  

Cell Phone Number:     

Work Phone Number:     
 

Employment Information 

Employer Name: 
Self Employed? Yes No     

 

Unemployed?   Yes No      
How Long? 

Address: 
Type of Business: 
Business Tel.No: Position/Title: Years with company 

If at current company less than 2 years 

 Previous Employer   

 Address:   

Business Tel.No. Position/Title Years with company 
 

 

Co-Applicant Information - Name is also on the Deed or you are a Spouse 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Present Address 

 Street:   

City/Town: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If at current company less than 2 years 

Previous Employer 
Address: 
Business Tel.No. 

 
 
 
 

Position/Title 

 
 
 
 

Years with company 
 

State: Zip Code:  
Mailing Address 

Street: 

Married          

Unmarried      

Separated      

Divorced 

City/Town: 

State: Zip Code: 
Email Address: Home Phone Number: 
Cell Phone Number: Work Phone Number: 
Employment Information 

Employer Name: 
Self Employed? Yes No     

 
Unemployed?   Yes No      
How Long? 

Address: 
Type of Business 

Business Tel.No: Position/Title Years with company 

 



Page 2  

ANNUAL INCOME - Please fill in ALL applicable income 

Source Applicant Other Household Members  18 + Total 

  

Salary     
Overtime pay     
Commissions     
Fees     
Tips     
Bonuses     
Self Employed     
Interest and/or Dividends     
Net Rental Income     
Income Received Periodically 

Social Security Benefits     
Pension Benefits     
IRA Redemptions     
Unemployment Benefits     
Workers Compensation     
Alimony, Child Support     
Other(describe)     
     

TOTALS $0 $0 $ $0 

 

ASSETS - Please include ALL Financial Accounts 
 

Type Cash Value Annual Income 

from Assets 

Bank /Financial Institution Name 

and last 4 digits of Acct number 

Checking Account(s)    
    
    
Savings Accounts(s)    
    
    
Credit Union Account(s)    
    
Investment Account(s) 

Stocks, bonds etc. 

   
   

    
IRA Account(s)    
    
Life Insurance    
Other-Inheritance    
Home    

Estimated Value    
Mortgage Balance    

Other Real Estate    
Estimated Value    

Mortgage Balance    

TOTALS $ $ $ $ 



Page 3  

List all outstanding financial obligations(your debts) including auto loans, credit cards, 

credit union loans, real estate loans, and all other loans. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
If a "Yes" answer is given to any question below, please explain on a separate sheet 

1. Do you have any outstanding unpaid judgments? Yes No    

2. In the past 7 years, have you declared bankruptcy? Yes No     

3. Are you a party in a law suit? Yes No     

Amount $   

 
MONTHLY HOUSING EXPENCES 

Item Monthly Payments Unpaid Principal Balloon Pymt. Balloon Amt. 

a. First Mortgage  $ Yes     

No     

$ 

b. 2nd Mortgage  $ 

c. Home Equity Loan  $  
d. Other Financing Secured 

by Property 

 Describe any special circumstance relative to your 
housing or its financing on an separate sheet  

e. Homeowner's Insurance 

Yes No 
 Name of Insurance Agent: 

Address: f. Flood Insurance 

Yes No 

$ 

Is your insurance included in your mortgage? Yes No  
g. Real Estate Taxes Total Town Assessed Value: 

Are your real estate taxes included in your mortgage? Yes No 

h. Back Taxes Due Which year(s):       

If necessary, supply further details on an attached sheet: 

TOTAL   
 

HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION - List the head of the household and all members who live in your home 

Give relationships of each family member to the head 

Member No. Full Name Relationship Date of Birth Ages 

1. Applicant     
2. Co-Applicant     
3. Dependent     
4. Dependent     
5     
6     
7     
Does anyone live with you now who is not listed above? 

Does anyone plan to live with you in the future who is not listed above? 

If either is "yes", please explain. 

Yes No 

Yes No 

 

LIABILITIES 

Type Creditor's Name Monthly Payment Unpaid Balance Due Date 

     
     
     
     
     
     
Monthly Alimony  $   
Monthly Child Support  $   
Monthly Child Day Care  $   
TOTAL  $ $  
 



Page 4  

 

 
 

LOCATION 

Street: 
 

 

Town: Plan # 
 

  

State: Lot # 
 

  

Year the home was built: 
 

 

 

Is your property listed as a Historical Property? Yes No 
 

 

 

To your knowledge, is there any lead-base paint in your home? 

Interior Yes No 
 

 

Exterior Yes No 
 

 

 

Are there any Children under six residing in your home? Yes No 
 

 

 

Is your home connected to the town's Water System? Yes No 

Sewer System? Yes No 

 
Is your property located in a Wetlands Conservation Area? Yes No 

Is your property located in a flood hazard area? Yes No 

 
Has your property been sited for any code violations within the past 12 months? 

Yes No 
 

 

 
 

Do you need Energy Upgrades? Yes No 
 

 

 

 

Briefly describe repairs needed: 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 



 

Income Eligibility Chart 

Income Limits 
80% of Median Income 

2018 

Community Development Partnership 

Housing Rehab Loan Program 

Commonw ealth of Massachusetts Income Limi ts 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Household Size 
1 

Barnstable County 
$48,300 

2 $55,200 
3 $62,100 
4 $68,950 
5 $74,500 
6 $80,000 
7 $85,500 
8 $91,050 

 

Please check as appropriate. 

1) INCOME ELIGIBLE CATEGORY – Available for income eligible homeowners – or income eligible 
property owners with rental units. If your present gross income falls within the HUD Income Limit 

Guidelines (see the income eligibility chart above), you may qualify as an INCOME ELIGIBLE property 

owner, and receive rehabilitation funds. Additional income information must accompany this application. 

Please check the box below and refer to the INCOME VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR 

ELIGIBLE PROPERTY OWNERS, and continue with the Employment Income Information. 

INCOME ELIGIBLE 

 
2) ABOVE INCOME CATEGORY – Available for property owners with rental units only . 
gross income exceeds the HUD Income Limits for income eligible property owners (see the income 

If your present eligibility chart above), you may declare yourself ABOVE INCOME. You may qualify for a loan to 

cover a match of the total rehabilitation costs. If the majority of the rental units are occupied by households that 

DO meet the income limits, then additional household/income documentation will be requested from the tenants. 

If you wish to declare yourself ABOVE INCOME, please check the box below. 

ABOVE INCOME 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5  
 
 
 
 



 

Community Development Partnership 

Housing Rehab Loan Program 
 

APPLICANT RELEASE FORM 
 

 

I/We, the undersigned certify that the information provided in the application is true and complete to the 
best of my/our knowledge. I/We authorize you to verify my bank accounts, employment, outstanding 
debts, including any present or previous mortgages, to order a consumer credit report, and to make any 
other inquires pertaining to my qualifications for a mortgage loan from you. You may make copies of this 
letter for distribution to any party with which I have a financial or credit relationship and that party may 
treat such copy as an original. I also understand that if my application is not acted upon within six (6) 
months of the application's anniversary the application will become null and the information must be 
resubmitted or updated. 

 
Privacy Act Notice: 
This information is to be used by the agency collecting it or its assignees in determining whether you 
qualify as a prospective mortgager under its program. It will not be disclosed outside the agency except as 
required and permitted by law. You do not have to provide this information, but if you do not your 
application for approval as a prospective mortgagor or borrower may be delayed or rejected 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Borrower's Signature Co-Borrower's Signature 

 
  

Borrower's Social Security Number Co-Borrower's Social Security Number 

 
  

Borrower's Date of Birth Co-Borrower's Date of Birth 

 
  

Date Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 



 

Community Development Partnership (CDP) 
Principal Borrower and Co-Borrower(s) Acceptance of the 

CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program Terms 

  Please initial on all lines   
 

I/We, the applicant(s), understand the information provided on this application will be utilized by CDP Housing 
Rehabilitation Loan Program to determine income eligibility for a housing rehabilitation. 

 

I/We understand that loan funds are limited, and will be distributed to those projects that reflect the grant 
guidelines and goals. 

 

I/We understand that additional information including, but not limited to, verification of employment, income, 
tax statements and credit information are required by Federal and State regulations, and I/We will provide such 
information required. 

 

In reference to multi-family dwelling unit, I/We understand that rental units rehabilitated under this program 
must be rendered to income eligible tenants for a period of fifteen (15) years at rental rates determined in 
accordance with the lower of HUD Fair Market Rent Guidelines or High Home Rent guidelines. 

 

If the property is transferred (whether by gift, law, sale or any other type or transfer), or if I/ We fail to abide by 
the Program Agreement, the full amount of the loan will become due and payable immediately. Property that is 
inherited by a direct heir is not subject to this clause. 

 
The following MUST accompany your signed and dated application: 

• 8 current consecutive weeks of pay stubs, from all household members 
• A copy of homeowner’s insurance policy 
• Copy of current property deed 
• Signed copy of your most recent two years Federal tax returns (1040 Submitted to the IRS) 
• Copy of your most recent paid property tax invoice 
• A copy of the first page of any outstanding mortgage of home equity loan 
• Bank statements of the past two consecutive months for all checking & savings accounts and Financial Statements 
• IRS Verification for the two most recent years can be obtained by requesting your tax transcripts (instructions 

attached) 
 

The applicant certifies that all information furnished in support of this application given for the purpose of obtaining financial 
assistance under the CDP Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program is true and complete to the best of the applicant’s knowledge and 
belief. Verification may be obtained from any sources identified herein. Willful misrepresentation of the information provided herein 
may be grounds for the denial of participation in the CDP Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program. If a Deferred Payment Loan has 
already been awarded and a misstatement is discovered, the amount of the Deferred Payment Loan shall be due and payable 
immediately to the CDP. 

 

Furthermore, the applicant understands that by applying for a Deferred Payment Loan under the CDP Housing Rehabilitation 
Loan Program, that he or she is agreeing to have the property inspected by a representative of the CDP Housing Rehabilitation Loan 
Program including a Lead Paint test and may be required to carry out and pay for lead testing and removal, if required. He or she 
also understands that such inspection may disclose code violations, requirements for lead paint (inspection and/or removal) and /or 
other requirements, which may result in additional costs or expenses beyond those, which may be included in the CDP Housing 
Rehabilitation Loan Program. 

 
 

 

Principal Borrower Date 
 
 

 

Co-Borrower (If Applicable) Date 
Please return completed application to: 

Jean Stanley, Director of Housing Rehab Programs, Housing Rehab Loan Program Community 
Development Partnership, 3 Main Street Mercantile, Unit 7, Eastham MA 02642           Email: 

jean@capecdp.org 

Page 7 

mailto:jean@capecdp.org


 

Community Development Partnership (CDP) 
Housing Rehab Program 

 
GRIEVANCE POLICY & PROCEDURE 

 
A. The CDP Program Manager will be responsible for handling any initial grievance with a goal 

of resolving any issues. 
B. The Grant Administrator will be responsible for overseeing the investigation of any grievance 

or serious complaint lodged against the grant employees or programs, or not resolved at the 
program level. 

C. Grievances should be submitted to the Grant Administrator in writing.  Individuals interested 
in filing a grievance may contact the Grant Administrator for assistance in doing so. 

D. The Grant Administrator has ten (10) business days to investigate the grievance and respond 
in writing to the party filing the grievance.  The Grant Administrator will gather all facts and 
information to the best of his or her ability.  Persons named in the grievance shall be 
interviewed.  The DHCD CDBG Program Representative will be notified of any grievance. 

E. The Grant Administrator will initiate a file that includes the original grievance, a report of 
findings, and a copy of the Grant Administrator’s determination and notification.  The 
outcome of the grievance will also be documented.   

F. If the person or group filing the grievance does not agree with the outcome, an appeal may 
be filed.  The Town Administrator will conduct his/her own investigation and report their 
findings to the filer of the grievance within ten (10) business days.   

G. If the person or group filing the grievance does not agree with the outcome, an appeal may 
be filed.  The Board of Selectmen will conduct their own investigation and report their 
findings to the filer of the grievance within ten (10) business days.  The findings of the Board 
of Selectmen are final. 

 
Assistance is provided, if necessary, to facilitate any individual in participating in this grievance 
process. 
         
       ______________________________ 
       CDP Director of Housing Rehab Programs 
Grant Administrator contact information       
 
Alice Boyd 
Bailey Boyd Associates 
9 Hillside Road  
Scituate MA 02066 
 
Tel: 508 430 4499 ext 1 
Email:  aboyd@baileyboyd.com 
 
 
I/We have read and understand the grievance procedure. 
 
Signed: _______________________________________ Date______________________ 
 
Signed: _______________________________________Date_______________________ 
 

Page 8 



Page 9 
 

 
 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 
AFFIDAVIT REGARDING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
 

I (we) the undersigned, being duly sworn, do certify that, to the best of my (our) knowledge: 
 

I (we) have not granted any gratuitous funds of financially benefitted any related party of the Town 
of CDBG Program or an organization under contract to manage a CDBG grant 
and are not related to any employee or officer of an organization under contract to manage a CDBG 
program or the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) who has a decision making or monitoring relationship with CDBG program. 

 
I (we) understand the following citation from 24 CFR Part 570.611 (b) and to the best of my (our) 
knowledge none of the following situations or relationships applies to me (us): 

 
24 CFR Part 570.611 (b) Conflicts prohibit. No persons described in paragraph (c) of this section 
who exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted 
with CDBG funds or who are in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside 
information with regard to these activities, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a CDBG- 
assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, 
or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business 
ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter. 

 
 

24 CFR Part 570.611 (c) Persons covered. The conflict of interest provisions of paragraph (b) of 
this section apply to any person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected official or 
appointed official to the recipient, or of any designated public agencies, or of subrecipients that are 
receiving CDBG funds. 

 
All covered person in paragraph (c) who do not violate paragraph (b) must first obtain a waiver 
from the U.S. Department of HUD before receiving CDBG assistance. 

 
 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE(S): 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 



Page 10  

VOLUNTARY INFORMATION REQUESTED 

The information regarding race, natural origin, sex designation, marital status, disability status 
and veteran status on this application is requested in order to assure the Federal Government, 
acting through the Department of Housing and Urban Development, that Federal Laws 
prohibiting discrimination against program or tenant applicants on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, religion, sex, familial status, age and disability are complied with. While you are 
not required to furnish this information, you are encouraged to do so. 

Please provide this information for each member of your household. 

ETHNIC CATEGORY:  

Hispanic     
 

Non-Hispanic     

RACE: White     Black/African American     

 Asian     Asian and White     

American Indian  / 
Alaskan Native     

Native Hawaiian /  Other 
Pacific Islander      

American Indian / Alaskan Native 
and White     

Black / African American 
and White     

American Indian / Native 
Alaskan and Black / African 
American              

Other (Multi-Racial)     

SEX: Male     Female     

OTHER, CHECK IF 
APPLICABLE: 

U.S. Veteran     Female Head of Household 

 Elderly (Over 60)     Disabled     

 
 

ETHNIC CATEGORY:  

Hispanic     
 

Non-Hispanic     

RACE: White     Black/African American     

 Asian     Asian and White     

American Indian  / 
Alaskan Native     

Native Hawaiian /  Other 
Pacific Islander      

American Indian / Alaskan Native 
and White     

Black / African American 
and White     

American Indian / Native 
Alaskan and Black / African 
American              

Other (Multi-Racial)     

SEX: Male     Female     

OTHER, CHECK IF 
APPLICABLE: 

U.S. Veteran     Female Head of Household 

 Elderly (Over 60)     Disabled     









 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 1 
 

 
 

HOUSING REHABILITATION PROJECT WORK WRITE – UP 

 
Prepared by Holly A Tarleton 
 
Housing Rehab Specialist 
CSL: #103566 
Contact: 
Holly A Tarleton 
PH:  
EM:  
 
 

PROJECT ID THR17-04 BRO 

HOMEOWNER 
 

STREET 
ADDRESS 

 

TOWN, 
STATE, ZIP 

Harwich, MA 02645 

PHONE 
 

CELL 
 

EMAIL 
 

YEAR BUILT 1975 

DATE 2/21/2018 

 
   

FINAL 
 
 

 
 

Accepted by:                            Date: _______________________________ 

NOTICE TO ALL PARTIES:  All CHANGES TO THE SCOPE OF WORK OR TIME FRAME REQUIRE A WRITTEN APPROVED CHANGE ORDER.  

Note:  Please feel free to call:  or Email:  with bid-related questions prior to submission.  Allow a 

minimum of 2 business days to ensure contact with me is made and questions can be answered correctly. 

 
Contractors are responsible for verification of field conditions, measurements and quantities.  Permits and 

Permit Fees and Inspection fees are to be included in all bids.  The costs of providing all labor and all materials 

 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 2 
 

shall be included in all bids.   All completed work shall meet the 2009 International Residential Code for One and 

Two Family Dwellings, including Appendix J; and/or Massachusetts State Building Code, 8th Edition and all 

applicable sections of the State Sanitary Code and all requirements of the Local Building Departments.   

The work shall also comply with the requirements of the State and Local Historical Commissions, if applicable.   

If home is pre-1978, painted materials may contain lead paint hazards above acceptable levels, these hazards 

will be identified in a Lead Inspection/Risk Assessment Report prepared specifically for this property; any rehab, 

renovation or painting activity completed after this report must be done by a Moderate or High Risk De-leader 

and done in accordance with Federal and State laws. A copy of the De-leaders License must be given to the 

Program Manager before the start of the work. Proper notifications are to be given per applicable Lead Paint 

laws to Homeowner and the state. Additionally, if Homeowner relocation is required per the applicable laws; 

the cost of relocation is not part of this contract.   

If home is pre-1978 and a Lead Inspection/Risk Assessment has not been performed, contractor is to follow the 

Renovate, Repair, and Paint (RRP) Rules.  In this case, it is the contractor’s responsibility to identify the existence 

of lead paint and/or presume its presence, and follow all local, state and federal requirements.   (See Housing 

Rehab Program Process and Policy for Projects Requiring Deleading) 

The order of the items (paragraphs & sub-paragraphs) within the Work Write-Up will establish the priority in 
which the work will progress.  It is suggested that all costs related the work stipulated in the initial paragraphs 
be accurately identified.  This should take place prior to ordering materials necessary to address lower priority 
items within the Work Write-Up.  This is particularly important for projects where costly unforeseen conditions 
are possible.  If necessary, funds from other work items, starting from the last paragraph in the Work Write-Up 
will be utilized to fund the work in earlier paragraphs.   
 
GENERAL: 
Furnish all labor, material, equipment, services, inspections and permits necessary to conduct the following 

Scope of Work, according to all specifications, manufacturers’ instructions and specifications, applicable and 

specified codes and regulations and in accordance with industry standards, including that work which can be 

reasonably inferred as necessary from the scope of work outlines herein, and taking all precautions described 

or known to you to protect the safety of the workers and protect the property. Products and materials of equal 

quality and grade may be substituted if request is submitted in writing and approved by Rehab Specialist. 

 

All proposed modifications to the Work Write-Up that the bidder believes are necessary in order to meet code, 

other regulations, or to ensure the safety and/or minimum standards of quality of his or her work, should be 

noted in Work Write-Up Edit Form in the form of specific edit(s) or substitutions to the document.   

 

If the CDP receives a bid with no proposed modifications on the Work Write-Up Edit Form, it is assumed that the 

bidder finds the Work Write-Up complete and understood.  If no entries are noted please note and sign. 

 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 3 
 

All bids shall include the installation of necessary miscellaneous materials, including metals, as may be 
reasonably inferred from this document or used in common construction methods. Materials shall be as 
specified and shall comply with the following: 
 

 All applicable state and local building codes/standards. 

 All applicable state and local historic commission/committee codes/standards. 

 All applicable state and local sanitary codes/standards. 

 All manufacturers’ installation manuals and warranty requirements. 

 All exterior metal items shall be either galvanized steel, stainless or approved non-ferrous metals. 

 

DEMOLITION NOTES:   

 All materials are to be placed in an onsite dumpster at end of each day and disposed of in accordance 

with state and local laws and guidelines.   

 Any materials which can be accepted and recycled at local transfer station are to be separated and 

handled in a separate container(s).   

 All landscaping within 10’ of building is to be protected from debris and/or damage.   

 Prior to any work beginning, 72 hour notice is to be given to CDP.  

 Access to all unit egress points are not to be blocked, burdened or hindered at any time during 

construction period. 

 Contractor is responsible for the proper removal and replacement of any electrical lines, 

communications lines and boxes, and gas meters attached to the home. 

 

It is hereby understood that the Work Write-Up is to be utilized as an outline for the work and as a guide for 
pricing the various work items.  IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, PLEASE SUBMIT THEM IN WRITING via EMAIL: 
HollyCDP@gmail.com 
 
The order of the items (paragraphs & sub-paragraphs) within the Work Write-Up will establish the priority in 
which the work will progress.  It is suggested that all costs related the work stipulated in the initial paragraphs 
be accurately identified.  This should take place prior to ordering materials necessary to address lower priority 
items within the Work Write-Up.  This is particularly important for projects where costly unforeseen conditions 
are possible.  If necessary, funds from other work items, starting from the last paragraph in the Work Write-Up 
will be utilized to fund the work in earlier paragraphs.   
 

PARAGRAPH 1: ELECTRICAL 
 
A.  HARDWIRED/WIRELESS SMOKE/COs:  The current smoke/CO system is over 10 years old and in need of 
replacement and upgrade, as well as expansion to new locations.  Contractor is to remove all old hardwired or 
battery-operated smoke/COs and install new units to meet existing code as if new construction.  Contractor may 
use wireless units to replace/upgrade battery operated units and/or use wireless units to expand wired system 
to new locations.  Systems shall be approved and in accordance with local wiring and fire inspectors.  Units shall 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 4 
 

be manufactured by Kidde, First Alert, or BRK or equal noted on Work Write Up Edit Form.  Minimum 
specifications shall include, battery backup, voice alarm with programmable location, silence features 
 
 
PARAGRAPH 2: ROOF/GUTTERS 
 
A. ROOFING: Area includes entire roof of home; the roof is nearing the end of its life expectancy.  Contractor is 
to remove, provide and replace entire roof section, including all flashing materials, drip edge, felt paper, etc.  At 
cheek areas remove and replace any siding or trim in order to replace any flashing materials; at least five courses 
up.  Replace trim work is to be P-5, replaced shingles are to be RR, Blue Label, replaced clapboard is to be pre-
primed, (or clear if applicable) solid red cedar; no finger jointed material is to be used on exterior applications.  
Replaced shingles need not be painted or stained.  Any replaced trim or clapboard that is painted or stained is 
to maintain the finish coat of existing material.  Any nail holes are to be filled, all painting to have two coats.   All 
replaced material is to match in style and dimension of material removed. 
Contractor is to provide photographs of stripped roof as well as papered roof with ice and water in place. 
Email to CDP Program Manager and rehab specialist at time of invoice: Jean@capecdp.org, 
Hollycdp@gmail.com   NO INVOICES WILL BE PAID WITHOUT DETAILED PHOTOS OF ALL AREAS OF ROOF 
WORK. 
 
Demolition:  Strip all Asphalt and Membrane roofing, the drip edge etc. and felt to expose wood. Provide 
photograph or inspection prior to covering. 
 
Disposal:   Legally dispose of all roofing debris.  Demolished materials must be removed from the site within 24 
hours unless stored in a covered dumpster that has been legally permitted by the Town.  Thoroughly clean all 
roofing debris and nails from the building perimeter.  
 
Ventilation:  The current amount of ventilation may be less than required per the 2009 International Residential 
Code/8th Edition of the Massachusetts State Building Code. If applicable, the Contractor shall upgrade the 
venting to the Code. As required, the sheathing at the ridge is to be cut to provide the proper air movement 
under the new ridge vent being installed under this scope of work.  Additionally, if required, Soffit vents and 
proper vents are to be installed.  If applicable to this project, Gable vents are to be removed, framed in, and 
sheathed and sided.  Eve style vents will not be allowed unless approved by the Rehab Specialist. It is the 
contractor’s responsibility to determine the venting for roof to maintain warranty and meet code requirements.    
 
Roof Deck Sheathing Repairs:  Re-nail any loose plywood to rafters.   
 
Drip Edge:  Install drip edge at all perimeters, including gable ends and eves.  Color to complement existing 
home and trim color 
 
Ice and Water protection:  Install adhesive EPDM or an equal Ice and water shield, three (3) feet in width, at all 
valleys, roof/sidewalls, intersections at dormers, rakes and eves; adhere membrane directly to the roof deck.  
Once complete, send photo to CDP for files. 
 

mailto:Jean@capecdp.org
mailto:Hollycdp@gmail.com


 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 5 
 

15LB Felt Underlayment:  Required for all roofing.  Lap 4” and staple to deck for rake-to-rake, ridges to eves; 
leaving no roof decking exposed.  Lap 4” over ice and water shield at all rakes and eves locations.  Provide 
photograph or inspection prior to covering. 
 
Flashing:  Replace all flashing at the Chimneys, Vent penetrations, Cheek walls etc. with the appropriate product 
for the area being flashed; lead to be utilized at Chimneys.  If a lower roof abuts a vertical wall, remove five (5) 
courses of the Siding materials at the abutting wall, then at the intersection, remove old flashing and re-flash 
and counter-flash as required. After the roof shingling operation, re-install the Siding, then prime and paint as 
required to complete the work.  If skylights are present, all flashing shall be removed and replaced with new 
flashing kit, which I compatible with existing skylight units. 
 
Shingles:  New Roof shingles to be 30-year Architectural grade, manufactured by Tamko, GAF, or Certain Teed.  
Shingles from other Manufacturers that meet or exceed the quality of those specified are acceptable.  Shingles 
to carry National Underwriter’s Class C or A label.  The Contractor is responsible for measuring the exact size of 
the area.  Utilize nailing pattern and quantity as specified by the manufacturer.  The Shingle color selection as 
required by the Historic Commission and/or the Homeowner. 
 
NOTE: ALL WORK IN THIS SECTION TO MEET: 

IRC 2009: CHAPTER 8: ROOF/CEILING CONSTRUCTION-RAFTER AND CEILING JOIST SPANS, FINISHES, 
VENTILATION 

IRC 2009: CHAPTER 9: ROOF ASSEMBLIES-DECK, VAPOR RETARDER, SUBSTRATE, INSULATION, VAPOR RET., 
COVERING 

IRC 2009: APENDIX J   

MA 780CMR: CORRESPONDING AMMENDMENTS 

STATE SANITARY CODE 105 CMR 410.501-WEATHER TIGHT ELEMENTS 

 
B. GUTTERS:  The gutters are deteriorated and not allowing water shed away from structure. Contractor is to 
remove and replace all gutters at the property. Contractor is to remove and re-use existing gutter helmet 
system.  Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and services necessary for the completion of all seamless gutters 
and downspouts.  This work includes but is not limited to removal and disposal of all old gutters.  Provide for 
installation of new gutters, downspouts, end caps, etc.   
 
PARAGRAPH 3: WINDOWS 
 
WINDOWS:  WINDOWS: DEMOLITION: Contractor is remove rotting, leaking and/or inefficient window (s) 
identified at Walk-Though, including interior and exterior trim, old flashing, all window components, including 
felt paper, and dispose of according to local and state regulations. 
 
PROVIDE AND INSTALL: All installations noted below are to be in accordance with manufacturer’s specifications.  
Windows are to fit in existing openings, provide all materials and labor for complete window install including 
sills, extension jambs, etc.  Any and all areas disturbed and scared during window replacement, both exterior 
and interior shall be repaired and painted to original condition. All windows shall meet Energy Star Criteria for 
Barnstable County or if town is a Green Community windows must meet Energy Star North Criteria.  If all siding 
is not being replaced, contractor is to remove old siding 12” from all sides of window to be replaced.  Replace 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 6 
 

all flashing materials, Grace Vycor (or equal) installed per manufacturer’s specifications (photos of every window 
is to be supplied to CDP prior to payment for line item being paid).  Contractor is to then weave in new siding to 
old matching the material and finish.  Paint and Stain is to match as closely as possible, given limitations of aged 
materials.  Coursing of new siding is to match existing.  No face nailing except under window.  Fill and sand all 
nail holes; two field coats of paint or stain applied over filled nail holes. 
  
A.  DOUBLE HUNGS  

LOCATION (S) A, B, C & D 

NUMBER 13 

NEW CONSTRUCTION OR REPLACEMENT NEW CONSTRUCTION 

BRAND HARVEY, PELLA, ANDERSEN, JELD-WEN,MARVIN 

WOOD CLAD or VINYL VINYL 

STYLE DOUBLE HUNG 

  
GRILL WORK – GRILLS BETWEEN THE GLASS 6/6 

SCREENS YES-FULL 

HARDWARE STANDARD-MATCH 

  
EXTERIOR CLADDING COLOR WHITE 

EXTERIOR TRIM STOCK P-5 

EXTERIOR TRIM DIMENSIONS 1”X4” WITH SILL 

EXTERIOR TRIM FINISH-LOW VOC PAINT 

EXTERIOR TRIM COLOR WHITE 

EXTERIOR GRILL WORK-COLOR WHITE 

  
INTERIOR COLOR WHITE 

INTERIOR STOCK MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR DIMENSIONS MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR FINISH-LOW VOC PAINT 

INTERIOR TRIM COLOR MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR GRILL WORK-COLOR WHITE 

 
NOTE: ALL WORK IN THIS SECTION MUST MEET: 

IRC 2009 CHAPTER 3-SECTION R308; R311/CHAPTER 6-WALL CONSTRUCTION-SECTION R612-EXTERIOR 
WINDOWS AND DOORS 

IRC 2009-APPENDIX J 

IRC 2009-CHAPTER 11 

MA 780 CMR-CORRESPONDING AMMENDMENTS 

STATE SANITARY CODE 105 CMR 410.501, 410.480 

 
B.  CASEMENT 

LOCATION (S) B 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 7 
 

NUMBER 1 

NEW CONSTRUCTION OR REPLACEMENT NEW CONSTRUCTION 

BRAND HARVEY, PELLA, ANDERSEN, JELD-WEN, MARVIN 

WOOD CLAD or VINYL VINYL 

STYLE CASEMENT 

  
GRILL WORK -  NONE 

SCREENS YES-FULL 

HARDWARE STANDARD-MATCH 

  
EXTERIOR CLADDING COLOR WHITE 

EXTERIOR TRIM STOCK P-5 

EXTERIOR TRIM DIMENSIONS 1”X4” WITH SILL 

EXTERIOR TRIM FINISH-LOW VOC PAINT 

EXTERIOR TRIM COLOR WHITE 

EXTERIOR GRILL WORK-COLOR NONE 

  
INTERIOR COLOR WHITE 

INTERIOR STOCK MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR DIMENSIONS MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR FINISH-LOW VOC PAINT 

INTERIOR TRIM COLOR MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR GRILL WORK-COLOR NONE 

 
NOTE: ALL WORK IN THIS SECTION MUST MEET: 

IRC 2009 CHAPTER 3-SECTION R308; R311/CHAPTER 6-WALL CONSTRUCTION-SECTION R612-EXTERIOR 
WINDOWS AND DOORS 

IRC 2009-APPENDIX J 

IRC 2009-CHAPTER 11 

MA 780 CMR-CORRESPONDING AMMENDMENTS 

STATE SANITARY CODE 105 CMR 410.501, 410.480 

 
C.  PICTURE/DH 

LOCATION (S) B 

NUMBER 1 

NEW CONSTRUCTION OR REPLACEMENT NEW CONSTRUCTION 

BRAND HARVEY, PELLA, ANDERSEN, JELD-WEN, MARVIN 

WOOD CLAD or VINYL VINYL 

STYLE PICTURE/DOUBLE HUNG 

  
GRILL WORK  MATCH EXISTING 

SCREENS FULL SCREEN 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 8 
 

HARDWARE STANDARD-MATCH 

  
EXTERIOR CLADDING COLOR WHITE 

EXTERIOR TRIM STOCK P-5 

EXTERIOR TRIM DIMENSIONS 1X4 W/SILL 

EXTERIOR TRIM FINISH-LOW VOC PAINT 

EXTERIOR TRIM COLOR WHITE 

EXTERIOR GRILL WORK-COLOR WHITE 

  
INTERIOR COLOR WHITE 

INTERIOR STOCK MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR DIMENSIONS MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR TRIM FINISH-LOW VOC PAINT 

INTERIOR TRIM COLOR MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR GRILL WORK-COLOR WHITE 

 
NOTE: ALL WORK IN THIS SECTION MUST MEET: 

IRC 2009 CHAPTER 3-SECTION R308; R311/CHAPTER 6-WALL CONSTRUCTION-SECTION R612-EXTERIOR 
WINDOWS AND DOORS 

IRC 2009-APPENDIX J 

IRC 2009-CHAPTER 11 

MA 780 CMR-CORRESPONDING AMMENDMENTS 

STATE SANITARY CODE 105 CMR 410.501, 410.480 

 
D. SMALL STATIONARY 

LOCATION (S) A 

NUMBER 2 

NEW CONSTRUCTION OR REPLACEMENT NEW CONSTRUCTION 

BRAND HARVEY, PELLA, ANDERSEN, JELD-WEN, MARVIN 

WOOD CLAD or VINYL VINYL 

STYLE PICTURE/DOUBLE HUNG 

  
GRILL WORK  MATCH EXISTING 

SCREENS FULL SCREEN 

HARDWARE STANDARD-MATCH 

  
EXTERIOR CLADDING COLOR WHITE 

EXTERIOR TRIM STOCK P-5 

EXTERIOR TRIM DIMENSIONS 1X4 W/SILL 

EXTERIOR TRIM FINISH-LOW VOC PAINT 

EXTERIOR TRIM COLOR WHITE 

EXTERIOR GRILL WORK-COLOR WHITE 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 9 
 

  
INTERIOR COLOR WHITE 

INTERIOR STOCK MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR DIMENSIONS MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR TRIM FINISH-LOW VOC PAINT 

INTERIOR TRIM COLOR MATCH EXISTING 

INTERIOR GRILL WORK-COLOR WHITE 

 
NOTE: ALL WORK IN THIS SECTION MUST MEET: 

IRC 2009 CHAPTER 3-SECTION R308; R311/CHAPTER 6-WALL CONSTRUCTION-SECTION R612-EXTERIOR 
WINDOWS AND DOORS 

IRC 2009-APPENDIX J 

IRC 2009-CHAPTER 11 

MA 780 CMR-CORRESPONDING AMMENDMENTS 

STATE SANITARY CODE 105 CMR 410.501, 410.480 

 
 
WINDOW NOTES: 
 
A. If applicable, the exterior and interior trim shall match the remainder of the trim on the home.  The 

exterior and interior walls disturbed during the conduct of the work are to be patched, then primed and 
painted (2 Coats) or stained and finished with the paint or the stain selected by the Owner and containing 
less than 50 grams per liter of Volatile Organic Material.  All materials and treatment of area shall match 
existing. 

 
B. If applicable, de-lead as per Lead Paint Inspection, the MA State law and the Federal requirements.  
 
C. If applicable, because of the age/type of the existing windows, the Contractor shall, once the exterior 

casing is removed and the weight pocket is exposed, install a double 2”x4” Jack placed against the 
original window frame at each side the window, then nailed and fastened in place with hurricane clips; 
the remainder of the weight cavity shall be filled with fiberglass insulation; re-sheath/build-out this area 
to match the plane of the existing exterior sheathing. 

 
D. The existing windows are not to be removed until the new windows are on-site. Delivered in original 

packaging and protect from weather. Store window units in an upright position in a clean and dry storage 
area above ground and protect from weather. 

 
E. Where applicable at the exterior, the Contractor shall re-shingle/re-side to the casings; then prime and 

paint or seal and stain (2 coats) all new work at the exterior and interior of the windows and all other 
areas disturbed during the window change out with paint/stain contain less that 50 grams/liter of 
Volatile Organic Material (VOC).   

 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 10 
 

F. The work in this section shall meet the 2009 International Residential Code and corresponding 
amendments of State Building Code 8th Edition, and the requirements necessary for any Federal Tax 
Credit, or rebates available at time of installation. 

 
G. Windows shall be warranted by manufacturer to be free from defects in manufacturing, materials, and 

workmanship for a period of ten (10) years from purchase date. 
 
H. Insulating glass shall be warranted by manufacturer against visible obstruction through the glass caused 

by a failure of the insulating glass air seal for a period of twenty (20) years from the date of original 
purchase. 

 
I. Verification of Conditions:  Before Installation, verify openings are plumb, square, and of proper 

dimension.  Report frame defects or unsuitable conditions to the CDP Rehab Specialist before 
proceeding. 

 
J. Housewrap to be installed prior to window installment, bottom piece of Grace Vycor Butyl Self Adhered 

Flashing, Dupont Flex Wrap, or Dupont Straightflash, followed by two side pieces, then the head piece.  
Head piece to be placed underneath housewrap.   

 
K. Assemble and install window unit according to manufacturer’s instructions, insuring plumb, level and 

square. 
 
L. Install sealant and related backing materials at perimeter of unit or assembly. 
 
M. Insulate and air seal all window voids prior to trimming, if applicable. 
 
N. Install accessory items as required.  Remove visible labels and adhesive residue from glass according to 

manufacturer’s instructions.  Leave windows and glass in a clean condition. Place adhesive labels on 
piece of paper for homeowner’s verification and records. 

 
O. The windows shall conform to any and all requirements of the Local and State Historic Commission, if 

applicable. 
 
 
PARAGRAPH 4: SIDING 
 
A. WHITE CEDAR SHINGLE SIDING:  the existing siding on the home is starting to crack, warp, and split on three 
sides of the home, the front and both gable ends.   The contractor is to remove all siding on indicated sides of 
the home and replace siding with white cedar shingles.  The Contractor is responsible for measuring the exact 
amount.  Once the existing siding and old felt paper is removed, photos of all areas of the substrate shall be 
taken; copies of the photos shall be immediately emailed to the CDP’s Rehab Specialist.  Next the contractor 
shall check the sub-strait for rot and vermin infestation if none is found, prep the sidewalls to receive the new 
cedar shingles first nailing any loose sheathing to framing members, wrap area with Tyvec or Typar 
Underlayment, then membrane splines at the windows and the doors.  All new corner boards will be installed 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 11 
 

where there currently are none.  Corner boards are to be P5.   Maintain or place felt paper splines behind all 
outside/inside corners, frieze, and rake.  
 
If rot is found the Contractor shall notify the CDP and Rehab Specialist immediately and then prepare a Change 
Order per the Contract documents.  Payment will not be made to the Contractor for changes in the work that 
have not been approved per the established protocol. The Contractor shall ensure that the coursing (no more 
than 5 inches in height) is correctly applied, maintaining correct margins and heights at all trim (no corner 
weaving or lacing of the sidewall shingles will be allowed on grant-funded projects).   
 
Replace all head flashing with new at the windows and doors within the area of work (no copper flashing will be 
utilized on grant-funded projects).  The white cedar shingle grade is to be Extra Grade A, R & R’s, (blue label); 
only nails approved by the Shingle Manufacturer shall be utilized.  Where applicable exterior Light fixture blocks 
and Outlet blocks shall be placed and then properly flashed, primed on all sides and edges finish painted and 
installed.  Replace all head flashing with new at the windows and doors within the area of work (no copper 
flashing will be utilized on grant-funded projects).  The white cedar shingle grade is to be Extra Grade A, R & R’s, 
(blue label); only nails approved by the Shingle Manufacturer shall be utilized.  Where applicable exterior Light 
fixture blocks and Outlet blocks shall be placed and then properly flashed, primed on all sides and edges finish 
painted and installed.   If ridge/soffit vent system exists and/or is to be installed as part of this WWU, contractor 
is to remove any existing gable end vents.  Frame and sheath area, paper and include in siding in this paragraph 
 
All shingling is to be done to exact manufacturer’s specifications to ensure warranty period remains intact. 
NOTE: ALL WORK IN THIS SECTION MUST MEET: 

 
 
PARAGRAPH 5:  DECK STAIRS: 
 
A. STEPS/RAILING:  Contractor is to install riser boards to all steps and a graspable handrail on one side of the 
stairway, per code.  All materials are to be pressure treated lumber with weather resistant fasteners. Once 
installed, all the new risers shall be primed and finished (2 coats) with paint containing less than 50 grams per 
liter of V.O.C.; fill and sand all nail holes, prior to painting. 
 
NOTE:  WORK IN THIS SECTION TO MEET: 

IRC 2009-R311.7-MEANS OF EGRESS-STAIRWAYS 

IRC 2009-APPENDIX J 

MA 780 CMR-CORRESPONDING AMMENDMENTS 

 
IRC 2009 CHAPTER 202, CHAPTER 37-SECTION E3703.2-CHAPTER 39-SECTION 3901-RECEPTACLE 
OUTLETS 

STATE SANITARY CODE 105 CMR 410.450, 410. 451,410.501,410.503, 410.552 

IRC 2009 CHAPTER 7-SECTION R703 EXTERIOR WALL COVERING-R703.1-R703.1.1 

IRC 2009-APPENDIX J 

STATE SANITARY CO-DE105 CMR 410.501 Weather Tight Elements 

MA 780 CMR-CORRESPONDING AMMENDMENTS 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 12 
 

 
IRC 2009-CHAPTER 34, CHAPTER 35, CHAPTER 36, CHAPTER 37, CHAPTER 38, CHAPTER 39, CHAPTER 40, 
CHAPTER 41  

MA 780 CMR-CORRESPONDING AMMENDMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
ADDITIONS/ALTERNATES/DELETIONS: 
 

  ADD/ALT/DELETE   

PARA 3D STATIONARY - 1 UNITS     

PARA 5A STEP/STAIRS     

PARA 4A 1 SQUARE WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES   

PARA 3A DOUBLE HUNG - 1 UNIT     

 
 
The purpose of this paragraph is to provide the Homeowners, in conjunction with the CDP, with the option to 
lower the project costs, should all responsible bids submitted be higher than the maximum amount allowed 
under the Rehab program.   The Add/Alt/Delete will be determined prior to contract execution. 
 
 
General Notes: 
 

A.  Application for all required permits shall be made within five (5) working days after the Contract signing; copies of said permits 
shall accompany the Contractor’s 1st requisition. Additionally, Contractors are required to provide the Homeowner with a brochure, 
“Renovate Right”, and get a receipt from the Homeowner for the brochure.  A copy of this receipt shall also accompany the 
Contractor’s 1st requisition submitted to the CDP.  Payment will not be made to the Contractor until these requirements are met.  

B.  The Contractor is responsible to maintain a Safe Working Environment and Safe Construction Site at all time; this includes both 
during the daily Construction Operations and during the time when the site is shut down; i.e., such as after work hours or when 
construction is halted due to unforeseen or unanticipated conditions.  All Federal and State safety requirements and regulations 
pertaining to this particular type of Construction shall be strictly adhered to.    

C.  The Workmanship/Craftsmanship shall be of the customary high standard, established in the Housing Industry for work of this 
nature.  

D.  The Construction Debris will be removed from the work site on a daily basis. 

E.  The Homeowner is responsible for removing items from the Contractor’s work area. 

F. In all cases where a substitute but equal product is to be utilized, the Contractor shall present the specifications and an illustration 
of the product match with the bid and at that time the product will be considered.  Additionally, substituting products, though equal, 
does not justify a delay in the start or completion of the work.  Failure to make this submittal with the bid will be an indication to CDP 
and the Rehabilitation Specialist that all products specified in the Work Write-Up will be utilized during the conduct of the work for 
this project.  



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 13 
 

G.  All materials shall be new, warrantable and installed per the Manufacturer’s specifications. Mechanicals shall be installed by those 
certified to do so, ensuring product warranty.  Copy of certification is required prior to final payment. 

H.  The Contractor shall supply Portable Toilet facilities at the Job site.  This will be cleaned and emptied on a weekly basis; the unit 
will be removed within 5 days of the completion of the work. 

I.  Lead paint may exist on areas of the Building. All materials containing lead paint that require removal and disposal must be 
accomplished by a Licensed De-leader and per Massachusetts Lead Paint Laws and applicable Federal Regulations.  A copy of the Lead 
Paint report, if applicable will be sent to each Contractor bidding on the project.  

J.  All new construction or replacement Windows shall meet the Energy Efficiency Requirements of Chapter 11 of the 2009 
Residential International Code, and/or Massachusetts State Building Code 8th Edition-780 CMR 51:00 and the requirements 
necessary for the Federal Tax credits or rebates. 

K.  All current and applicable State Building, Electrical, Energy, Plumbing & Gas and Sanitary Codes are to be adhered to during the 
conduct of this work.    

L.  The Contractor shall inform the Rehab Specialist by email two (2) days prior to opening the Roof, removing the Exterior Doors or 
removing the Windows as the Rehab Specialist at his option will either view the work at the site during those critical openings of 
request that the Contractor provide photos of conditions encountered and methods and materials utilized during the installation of 
the new work.  Failure to provide this lead time for inspection and/or photos if required will trigger a request to open and inspect the 
completed work as requested by the Rehab Specialist.  The cost to open and close the work shall be borne by the Contractor.   

M. Once the Contract has been awarded, the Contractor shall prepare a schedule illustrating the construction services to be provided.  
The schedule will be designed on a week-by-week basis (monthly calendar style), beginning at the start date (Notice to Proceed) and 
ending at the Contractor’s projected completion date.  The schedule will illustrate by trade, the tasks to be completed, including the 
key material delivery dates necessary to accomplish the work within the proposed time frame.  Illustrated in the schedule will be the 
proposed dates for Inspections by the applicable Code Enforcement Departments.   Note: The schedule will be completed and 
presented to CDP and the Rehab Specialist within five (5) business day of the Notice to Proceed. 

N.  As applicable, the Contractor shall include with the final requisition (payment request) all documentation necessary for the 
Homeowner to apply for rebates, tax credits, and other incentives or programs available to the Homeowner.  Additionally, all product 
information, warranties and or guaranties applicable to the project shall be submitted with the last requisition. Payment will not be 
made to the Contractor until these requirements are met.    

O.  The Contractor is responsible for protecting all landscaping within 10 ft. of the perimeter of the property requiring exterior 
renovations.  The Contractor shall take photos of the condition of all landscaping within the indicated area prior to protecting 
(covering) and then take another set of photos illustrating the area once protected.  A copy of these photos shall be sent to CDP and 
the Rehab Specialist.    

P.  Due to Insurance Liability mandates and O.S.H.A. regulations, Homeowners are not allowed on ladders, scaffolds, roofs, etc. or 
within the work areas deemed hazardous by the Contractor.  Failure to adhere to paragraph P. of the General Notes by either the 
Contractor or the Homeowner shall be grounds to terminate the Contract.     

Q.  There shall be no smoking on or within the property.  No alcoholic beverages will be consumed on or within the property.  

R.   Contractor is required to apply for and obtain all necessary and applicable permits.  Copies of permits, with sign offs, will be 
required for release of retainage. 

S. Contractor is responsible for measurements of all components to be installed prior to submitting bid, including, but not limited to, 
doors, windows, siding, roofing, etc.  Cost to complete each paragraph shall be carried in each line item, including any custom or 
special-order items. 

 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 14 
 

NOTICE TO ALL PARTIES:  All CHANGES TO THE SCOPE OF WORK OR TIME FRAME REQUIRE A WRITTEN APPROVED CHANGE ORDER.  

Note:  Please feel free to call: 508-254-9932 or Email: HollyCDP@gmail.com with bid-related questions prior to submission to CDP.  

Allow a minimum of 2 business days to ensure contact with me is made and questions can be answered correctly. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 15 
 

WORK WRITE-UP EDIT FORM 

CHECK ALL PERMITS/LICENSES REQUIRED:  

 Building   Electrical 

 Plumbing  Gas 

  Septic 

 Renovate, Repair, Paint (Must check if pre-1978) 

 Moderate Risk Deleader (Must check if home has obtained a “Lead Inspection/Risk Assessment Report”) 

 High Risk Deleader (Must check if home has obtained a “Lead Inspection/Risk Assessment Report”) 

 

Boiler/Furnace: (note when applicable) 

Brand:____________________________Model#:____________________________ 

DHW Tank: (note when applicable) 

Brand:____________________________Model#:____________________________  

Windows to be used:  (note when applicable) 

Brand:_____________________________  Line:______________________________ 

Doors to be used:  (note when applicable) 

Brand:_____________________________  Line:______________________________ 

Substitutions: 

CHECK ONE: 

 NO SUBSTITUTIONS 

 SUBSTITUTIONS:______________________________________________________________________ 

SHINGLE amount: ___________ square          CLAPBOARD amount: ___________ square 

 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Contractor (at bid submittal)     Date 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 



 

THR17-04-BRO 
  Page 16 
 

Signature of Homeowner (at contract signing)    Date 



FILL IN THE BLUE BOXES ONLY

PROJECT ID THR17-04 BRO CONTRACTOR:

HOMEOWNER CONTACT:

STREET ADDRESS ADDRESS:

TOWN, STATE, ZIP Harwich, MA 02645 TOWN:

PHONE STATE:

CELL ZIP:

EMAIL PHONE:

YEAR BUILT 1975 CELL:

DATE 2/5/2018 EMAIL:

TYPE OF WORK Moderate Rehab

REHAB SPECIALIST COMMUNITY DEV. PART.

CONTACT: Holly A Tarleton

PHONE: 508-254-9932

EMAIL: Hollycdp@gmail.com

WWU # PRICE

1

A SMOKES/CO'S 1,400.00$                                 

1,400.00$                                 

2

A ROOF 10,800.00$                               

B GUTTERS 1,400.00$                                 

12,200.00$                               

3

A DOUBLE HUNG - 13 UNITS 14,300.00$                               

B CASEMENT - 1 UNIT 1,200.00$                                 

C PICTURE/DH - I UNIT 3,500.00$                                 

D STATIONARY - 2 UNITS 1,000.00$                                 

20,000.00$                               

4

A WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES 7,500.00$                                 

7,500.00$                                 

5

ESTIMATE

HARDWIRED/WIRELESS SMOKES/CO'S

ROOF/GUTTERS

WINDOWS

SIDING

DECK STAIRS

mailto:Hollycdp@gmail.com#


A STEPS/RAILING 400.00$                                     

400.00$                                     

JOB TOTAL 41,500.00$                    

PARA 3D STATIONARY - 1 UNITS 500.00$                                     

PARA 5A STEP/STAIRS 400.00$                                     

PARA 4A 1 SQUARE WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES 750.00$                                     

PARA 3A DOUBLE HUNG - 1 UNIT 1,100.00$                                 

ADD/ALT/DELETE



FY18 Truro HR Sub-Grantee
Bid Comparison Sheet

TRI CDP
Minimum Evaluation Criteria

Has the proposer conformed in all material 
respects to the submission requirements as 
set forth in the RFP?

YES YES

Does the proposer have a minimum of two years' 
experience with CDBG housing rehabilitation 
grants?

YES YES

Does the proposer have a minimum of three 
references for confirmation of quality 
performance standards?

YES YES

Comparative Evaluation Criteria Rating Rating

Evaluation of Scope of Services
Highly Advantageous Highly Advantageous

Experience of Firm and Management Advantageous* Advantageous*

Availability to meet with Town Representatives
Highly Advantageous Highly Advantageous

CDBG Housing Rehab Program Clients
Highly Advantageous Highly Advantageous

*Scoring of HR Staff Resumes
CDP has the minimum 2 years experience as 
an agency. Scoring of Staff in Bid:      - 
Assuming Operations Director is Program  
Manager >5yrs experience: 3pts;     
- Rehab Specialist <2yrs experience:0 pts; 
Total Points 3 divided by 2 staff = 1.5 AVG

Staff Avg/ Score: 
1.5 pts. Assuming 
Operations Director is 
HR Manager. 
Rounded up to 
"Advantageous"

TRI has the minimum of 2 years experience as 
an agency. Scoring of Staff in Bid:      
- 2 Program Managers>5 yrs experience ea:
2 x 3pts = 6pts 
- Program Assistant A  >2 yrs 1pt;
- Program Assistant B  < 2yrs 0 pts;
- Rehab Specialist A >5 yrs  3 pts;
- Rehab Specialist B <2 yrs  0 pts.
Total Points 10 divided by 6 staff = 1.666AVG

Staff Avg. Score: 
1.666 Rounded up 
to "Advantageous"

Highly Advantageous: 3 pts 
Advantageous: 2 pts

Not Advantageous: 1pt 
Unacceptable: 0 pts

Consent Agenda Item: 6A4



 

Consent Agenda Item: 6B 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Board of Selectmen Agenda Item 

 

DEPARTMENT: Licensing Department 
 

REQUESTOR: Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant on behalf of Farm Maid Foods, Top Mast Café, Salty Market 

and Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod 

 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: December 11, 2018 

 
ITEM: Approval of Renewal of 2019 Business Licenses: 
                           Common Victualler License-Farm Maid Foods, Top Mast Café, and Salty Market  

                                      Lodging House License-Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod  
 

EXPLANATION: The Lodging House and Common Victualler Licenses are under the authority of the Board of 
Selectmen as Local Licensing Authorities. 
 
If you approve these license for renewal, the license will be issued only upon compliance with all regulations, 
receipt of the necessary fees, proof of taxes paid in full for the current fiscal year and prior approval of the Food 
Service License by the Health Agent or Board of Health. The Food Service Licenses for Farm Maid Foods, Top 
Mast Café, Salty Market, and Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod were issued by the Health Agent. There were no 
reported issues with these establishments in 2018. 

 
 

 

Mass General Law 
Licenses & Permits Issued 

by Board of Selectmen 
 

Names of Businesses 

Chapter 140 § 2 Common Victualler 
(Cooking, Preparing and Serving 

food) 

 Farm Maid Foods  
   Top Mast Café  
     Salty Market   

Chapter 140 § 23 Lodging House License                Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED: The applicants will not be issued their Licenses to operate.  

 
SUGGESTED ACTION: MOTION TO approve the 2019 annual Common Victualer License for Farm Maid Foods, 

Top Mast Café, and Salty Market and the annual Lodging House License for Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod 

upon compliance with all regulations and receipt of the necessary fees. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Renewal Application for 2019: Farm Maid Foods 

2. Renewal Application for 2019: Top Mast Café  

3. Renewal Application for 2019: Salty Market  

4. Renewal Application for 2019: Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod  



Consent Agenda Item: 6B1























Consent Agenda Item: 6B2

























Consent Agenda Item: 6B3

























        Consent Agenda Item: 6B4 















 

1 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  6C 

TOWN OF TRURO 
               Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
 

DEPARTMENT: Shellfish Department 

 

REQUESTOR:   Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant on Behalf Of Dan Smith, Aquaculture Grant Holder   

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  December 11, 2018 

 

ITEM: Dan Smith’s Tidal Grant Coordinate Change at Beach Point 

 

EXPLANATION:  Dan Smith’s Tidal Grant License at Beach Point was approved for renewal by the Board of 

Selectmen on October 9, 2018.  The coordinates on his license are representative of the coordinates displayed 

on his initial application dated August 25,2015. The Conservation Commission required a survey of the Grants 

in 2015. Slade Associates was hired and adjusted the locations of the acres to create two perfect square acres. 

These coordinates were approved by the Conservation Commission and the US Army Corps of Engineers. The 

coordinates are expressed in Degrees-Minutes & Seconds.  

 

Dan Smith is requesting that the coordinates on his Tidal Grant License be amended to reflect the exact 

coordinates as documented on the Slade Plan and recorded with the Conservation Commission. Tony Jackett, 

Harbor Master and Shellfish Constable has reviewed the change.  

 

The change of coordinates will be as follows: 

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

The license would be amended to read those coordinates for consist location of the two Grants.  

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The current license would remain with coordinates that do not reflect the 

Conservation Commission and the Army Corps of Engineers.  

 

 NW 42° 2' 664" N /70° 6'.673" W;    

 NE  42° 2'.665" N/ 70 °6'.618" W;                             

 SE 42° 2'.592" N/ 70° 6'.674" W;                               

 SW 42° 2'.621" N/ 70° 6'.737" W                                               

 CURRENT 

 North Latitude      West Longitude 

 42°02' 39.311"        70°06'40.434"     

 42°02'37.422"         70°06' 37.527"                            

 42°02'35.215"         70°06'40.102"                             

 42°02'37.093"         70°06'43.022"                                               

 AMENDED  



 

2 

 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION: Motion to amend the coordinates to read (N 42°02' 39.311 N /70°06'40.434 W;    
NE 42°02'37.422 N/ 70°06' 37.527 W; SE 42°02'35.215 N/ 70°06'40.102W; SW 42°02'37.093 N/ 70°06'.43.022 
W) for Dan Smith’s two-acre tidal grant license, located off Beach Point Landing.  
 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Dan Smith Memorandum–October 30, 2018 

2. Exhibit A-Aquaculture License Application–August 25, 2015 

3. Exhibit B-Plan of Land Slade Associates (Proposed Aquaculture)–July 6, 2016 

4. Exhibit C-WPA Form 5-Order of Conditions (Town of Truro Order of Conditions Page a, # 18; DEP File # 

SE-75-0966)–August 26, 2016 

5. Exhibit D-Department of the Army-File Number NAE-2016-1803–September 8, 2016  

6. Exhibit E-GPS Map of Area with current Coordinates and Slade Associate Coordinates 

7. Conservation Agent’s Review  

 



Consent Agenda Item: 6C1





Consent Agenda Item: 6C2









                Consent Agenda Item: 6C3



       Consent Agenda Item: 6C4





























         Consent Agenda Item: 6C5











Consent Agenda Item: 6C6





1

Nicole Tudor

Sent: Monday, December 03, 2018 11:05 AM
To: Nicole Tudor
Subject: Dan Smith Aquaculture grant- coordinates

Hi Nicole, 
I reviewed Dan’s letter and agree with what he described.  The Commission required him to present a plan showing the 
grant boundaries with some verifiable monuments. The coordinates were agreed upon and can be verified in the field. 
His memo is intended to correct the public record that pre‐dated some of his process with the Conservation 
Commission. 
Thanks very much, 
Emily 

Emily Beebe, RS 
Health & Conservation Agent 
508‐349‐7004, ext 119 

Consent Agenda Item: 6C7



1 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  6D 

  

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Board of Selectmen Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

 

REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant on behalf of Nick Norman, Chair Open Space 

Committee  

 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE: December 11, 2018 

 

ITEM: Approval of Tom Bow applying to serve on the Open Space Committee  

 

EXPLANATION: Tom Bow applied to serve on the Open Space Committee as the 

representative of the Truro Conservation Trust.  The paperwork is complete and an 

endorsement of the applicant from the Chair is included on the Application to Serve. There 

currently is a vacancy on the Open Space Committee.  

 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  n/a 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The applicant will be unable to serve on the Open Space 

Committee as the Trust Representative. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve Tom Bow to serve on the Open Space Committee for 

a three-year term which will expire June 30, 2021. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1.  Application to Serve-Tom Bow 

 

 



        Consent Agenda Item: 6D1



DRAFT 
 

Truro Select Board Meeting 

Tuesday, October 16, 2018 

 Truro Public Safety Facility  

 

Select Board Members Present:  Chair Robert Weinstein; Maureen Burgess, Kristen Reed, 

Paul Wisotzky, Janet Worthington 

Present: Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer; Assistant Town Manager Kelly Clark; Town Counsel 

Katie Loughman (by phone); Interim Planner Jessica Bardi 

 

Chair Robert Weinstein called the meeting to order at 2:10 p.m.  He announced that a regular 

meeting would follow the work session.  During the work session, there is no public 

commentary.  Tim McCarthy said he was filming for LIP TV. 

 

WORK SESSION 

Discussion of Bylaw Articles for Annual Town Meeting Warrant  

Residential House Size Bylaw 

Selectmen had several questions regarding provisions in the proposed Residential House Size 

bylaw.  Selectmen discussed the size allowances and categories by lot size.  Board of Selectmen 

members agreed that minimum lot size, i.e., .775 of an a three-quarter acre lot category should be 

added to the chart/table.  Interim Planner Jess Bardi explained how the calculations work for 

minimum three-quarter lot size s by right and by Special Permit.   Chair Weinstein questioned 

the allowances offered in the proposed bylaw and asked for baseline information on average 

sizes of houses in Truro.  Maureen Burgess gave statistics on large houses that have been built.  

Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer said there are also people who believe that the size allowances 

are not big enough.  Town Counsel Katie Loughman said significant size limitation changes 

could be inconsistent with Planning Board’s proposed bylaw.  She recommended making any 

changes on Town Meeting floor.  If the Board of Selectmen disagree with the numbers in the 

bylaw, Ms. Loughman said, they could vote to not recommend.  Paul Wisotzky expressed his 

concern over the intent of the bylaw, which he sees as making house size more restrictive.  Chair 

Weinstein said that voters at Town Meeting will make the decision on size.  The bylaw will be 

revisited at the meeting next week, Ms. Palmer said.   

 

Marijuana Bylaw 

Town Counsel Katie Loughman summarized the Planning Board bylaw for the Regulation of 

Marijuana.  She said the general purpose section, definitions, and the use table had been 

developed with input from the local Craft Co-operative.   The categories set by the state are 

included in the bylaw.  She noted the footnotes included for the Residential District.  The Use 

Chart included limitations for the number of establishments.  There were specific regulations for 

cultivation in the Residential District.  The Permit Granting Authority is to be a spilt authority 

between Planning Board and the Zoning Board Appeals.  Site Plan Review, which requires 

abutter notification, is one of the criteria set by ZBA, Attorney Loughman said.   

 

     Consent Agenda Item: 6E  



Minutes of the Board of Selectmen meeting of 10/16/18 2 

 

 

Town Counsel Loughman dealt with most of the issues raised by the Selectmen concerning the 

bylaw.  There is 25% lot coverage for structures on cultivator 2-acre lots.  Footnotes cover 

additional information on coverage allowances of up to 50% and acreage allowed.  Greenhouses 

are excluded from the calculation.  Town Counsel said the state requirements cover lighting, 

fencing, and security systems.  In a clarification of definitions for transportation and delivery, 

Ms. Loughman explained that retailers are not allowed to deliver marijuana products to 

consumers.  There is a cap on the marijuana canopy, the total production for cultivators; 

otherwise a business would need two separate licenses.  Micro-business is a state licensed 

category, so a marijuana micro business, according to Town Counsel, does not have a cap.  Ms. 

Loughman was silent on a point made by Chair Weinstein that the bylaws did not address 

cultivation on private property within the boundaries of the National Seashore, federal land. State 

buffer zone regulations do not include Pre-School or playgrounds.  Truro could add provisions 

for the Wellhead Protection Zone in the Marijuana bylaw.  The other boards, especially the 

Board of Health and Conservation Commission, could make any concerns known to Planning 

Board.  Town Counsel said both Planning Board and ZBA could condition noise restriction or 

traffic study as the permit granting authorities.  The state’s stand-alone structure requirement was 

left in the bylaw from a security viewpoint.   Most towns are not allowing marijuana cultivation 

as home occupation business.  Product manufacturing might take place in a residential dwelling, 

Attorney Loughman said.  She noted that the Truro cooperative was somewhat unique because 

there are only a few other cooperatives in Massachusetts.  She said the provisions in the 

proposed bylaw were generous and would allow people to get into the marijuana industry. 

 

 Janet Worthington did not want to abandon the idea of an Overlay District, which she had 

favored.   She said she is not happy with the Residential Zone allowance because she doesn’t 

think everyone should be allowed to have a business in their backyard.  Robert Weinstein 

reminded everyone that without a bylaw in place, the Town would have no regulations of its 

own.  The state regulations would govern cultivation.  Paul Wisotzky asked about using the Host 

Community Agreement as a control should the zoning bylaw fail.  He remarked upon the 

Selectmen’s charge to consider the best interest of Truro as a whole.    

 

Town Counsel Loughman and Interim Planner Jess Bardi will clarify the language on lot size 

and building coverage.   Ms. Loughman said that they will also clear up inconsistencies in the 

cultivation provisions in residential and non-residential districts.   

 

Maureen Burgess moved to close the Work Session.  Kristen Reed seconded, and the motion 

carried 5-0.   

 

REGULAR MEETING 

Chair Weinstein opened the regular meeting at 4:00 p.m. 

 

Petitioned Bylaw Votes 



Minutes of the Board of Selectmen meeting of 10/16/18 3 

 

Paul Wisotzky moved to refer to Special Town Meeting Petitioned Article Section 100 

Regulation of Marijuana bylaw and Petitioned Article 110 Right to Farm bylaw.  Maureen 

Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0. 

 

Legal Representation for Herring River Restoration Project 

Board members discussed the strengths of the two attorneys under consideration to represent 

Truro’s interests in the Herring River Restoration Project.  David Lurie of Lurie Friedman LLC 

and Barry Fogel of Keegan Werlin LLC had come before the Board for interviews at the meeting 

held on October 9, 2018.  Board members considered the rate ranges quoted and the current 

needs for Truro’s involvement in the Herring River Restoration Project.  After a careful 

comparison of what the attorneys could offer, the Selectmen and Town Manager decided that 

Barry Fogel of Keegan Werlin would provide the best representation for the Town.   

 

Paul Wisotzky moved to authorize Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer to initiate negotiations and 

prepare an accompanying contract to secure the service of Keegan Werlin LLC.  Kristen Reed 

seconded, and the motion carried 5-0.   

 

Rae Ann Palmer said that Wellfleet had requested that the Friends of the Herring River brief the 

new attorneys from Wellfleet and Truro at the same time.  Robert Weinstein said the attorneys 

could do the briefing on their own.  He desired an independent review of the project without the 

influence of an advocate.  Janet Worthington suggested that the attorney could decide what 

approach was best.  Rae Ann Palmer said a briefing by the chief scientist would be another 

option, but the attorney could decide.   

 

Next Meeting 

Rae Ann Palmer and the Board agreed upon a work session at 4:00 p.m. before the regular 

meeting at 5:00 p.m. on October 23, 2018.  The School boiler transfer Capital project will not be 

on the Special Town Meeting Warrant, Ms. Palmer said.  Rae Ann Palmer will check with the 

Finance Committee about holding a joint meeting with them, but the Board felt that it could wait 

for Annual Town Meeting.   The Budget process for Fiscal Year 2020 will begin soon. 

   

Adjournment 

Paul Wisotzky moved to adjourn.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0.  

The meeting was adjourned at 4:50 p.m.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Mary Rogers, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes of the Board of Selectmen meeting of 10/16/18 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Robert Weinstein, Chair    Maureen Burgess, Vice-chair 

  

 

________________________________        ____________________________________ 

Kristen  Reed      Paul Wisotzky 

 

 

___________________________________         

  Janet Worthington, Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Records Material of 10/16/18 

1. Bylaws for House Size and Regulation of Marijuana 

2. Petitioned Bylaws 100 on Marijuana and 110 Right to Farm  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                      DRAFT 

Consent Agenda Item: 6E 

 

Truro Select Board Meeting 

Wednesday, November 7, 2018 

 Truro Town Hall Selectmen’s Chambers  

 

Select Board Members Present:  Chair Robert Weinstein; Maureen Burgess, Kristen Reed, 

Paul Wisotzky, Janet Worthington 

Present: Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer; Assistant Town Manager Kelly Clark  

 

Chair Robert Weinstein called meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION 

Budget Message  

Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer said, and the Selectmen concurred, that last year’s message was 

still relevant and could serve this year with revised dates.  Chair Weinstein said the Budget Task 

Force meetings will be televised again this year.   Budget Task Force meetings are expected to 

start on December 7th.  Ms. Palmer said there will be some changes in how the Budget is 

prepared because the Town will be using a new software program.   

 

Paul Wisotzky moved to approve the FY2020 Budget Message.  Kristen Reed seconded, and the 

motion carried 5-0. 

 

Special Town Meeting Preparations 

Selectmen indicated which motions they will be making at Special Town Meeting.  Ms. Palmer 

explained some of the financial Warrant Articles.  Planning Board will present the zoning bylaw 

Articles, she said.  The petitioned Articles failed to meet all procedural requirements and will not 

be presented at Special Town Meeting.  Maureen Burgess asked about time limits on comments 

on Articles.  Rae Ann Palmer said that control of time limits is up to the Town Moderator.   Ms. 

Palmer said the prepared explanations of each Article could help clarify issues and reduce the 

number of questions people ask.  Robert Weinstein said that amendment process should be 

clarified in advance, so people, including Selectmen, could make any changes on the zoning 

bylaw Articles.   

 

Filming Agreement for Optomen Productions 

Rae Ann Palmer requested guidance from the Selectmen on the request of Optomen Productions 

LLC for use of Town property at Longnook Beach to a film “When Sharks Attack.”  Members of 

the Board discussed the fee, shared their reservations about the title, and expressed concerns over 

the film’s possible negative impact.  Ms. Palmer offered to contact the filmmakers to get more 

information on their plan.  

 

Paul Wisotzky moved to advise the Town Manager to approve, for a fee of $500 a day, an 

application to film “When Sharks Attack” at Longnook Beach.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and 

the motion carried 4-1.   



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen meeting of 11/7/18 2 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature: Curb Cut Application for Whitmanville Rd. 

B. Review and Approve Business Licenses: Common Victualer License – Montano’s 

Restaurant 

C. Review and Approve the 2019 Annual Alcohol Licenses and ABCC Applications – 

Montano’s Restaurant, Truro Vineyards of Cape Cod (Winery and distillery), Salty 

Market, and Pamet Valley Package 

D. Review and Approve the Alcohol Beverages Control Commission 2019 Renewal 

Certification 

E. Review and Approve Board of Selectmen Minutes: October 16, 2018 and October 23, 

2018 

 

Chair Robert Weinstein reviewed the first item in the consent Agenda, a curb cut for 

Whitmanville Rd.  He addressed the obligation of the home owner to make the appropriate 

address change from Rte. 6 to Whitmanville Rd.  Brian Schmidt, the home owner, explained 

what he is doing with his driveway. 

 

Maureen Burgess offered amendments to the minutes of October 16, 2018, which were taken out 

of the Consent Agenda for further correction. 

 

Paul Wisotzky moved to approve the Consent Agenda with the minutes of October 16, 2018 

removed.  Kristen Reed seconded, and the motion carried 5-0. 

 

SELECTMEN REPORTS AND TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

Janet Worthington asked about procedure for forming a Friends of the Harbor organization, and 

Rae Ann Palmer explained what they need to do. 

 

Paul Wisotzky commended Truro voters for their 76% turn-out.  He thanked Montano’s for 

hosting the Friend of the Library event.  He will be participating in planning Truro Connection 

events in 2019, he said.  He had attended an Open Space meeting and reported that they are 

looking forward to the retirement of the Poor’s Hill debt in Fiscal Year 2020.  Open Space has an 

opening for a new member, Mr. Wisotzky said.   He enjoyed the opening day for shellfishing at 

the Pamet Harbor.   

 

Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer said that there are two Research Community meetings on sharks 

planned.  She was waiting to hear from the Superintendent of the Cape Cod National Seashore 

for more information.  She announced a presentation on seals, scheduled for the first meeting in 

January.  The Town is accepting bids for East Harbor, she said.  Truro has met with Mark Borelli 

from the Center for Coastal Studies, Tim Smith of the National Seashore, and Army Corps of 

Engineers regarding the Pamet River.  She is looking forward to presenting the report when it is 

ready.  The final meeting with Provincetown on shared services will be held November 27, 2018.  

Lastly, she had met with the Police to discuss union negotiations. 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen meeting of 11/7/18 3 

 

 

SELECTMEN COMMENTS 

Kristen Reed thanked the citizens who voted, those who served at the polls and the candidates 

who were on the ballot.  She made an announcement for the Special Town Meeting date because 

she had heard from several people that they were unaware that it was taking place. 

 

Maureen Burgess offered some global, environmental, good news, reported on NPR, that the 

hole in the ozone layer is healing.  Chair Weinstein added that there had been photos of this in 

the New York Times. 

 

Robert Weinstein thanked participants in the November 6th Election.  He praised everyone who 

made the shellfishing sustainable in the Pamet Harbor.  He congratulated the DPW for their 

proactive tree trimming in advance of winter storms.  He said the replacement roof at the Library 

is underway.   

 

Janet Worthington acknowledged the volunteers at the Food Bank.  Paul Wisotzky added that 

there are over 200 clients that use the Food Bank.  Ms. Worthington suggested that Selectmen 

help with the turkey hand-out day or a similar effort for Christmas.  Rae Ann Palmer said 

delivering holiday dinners was a possibility.  

 

NEXT MEETING 

Town Manager Rae Ann Palmer discussed agenda items for Tuesday, December 11, 2018 

meeting: a public hearing for New Singular Wireless cellular box; the lodging license of Truro 

Vineyards; a change in the tidal grant for Dan Smith; and minutes.  Janet Worthington suggested 

adding an item to organize a Selectmen’s Christmas effort.   

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Paul Wisotzky moved to adjourn.  Maureen Burgess seconded, and the motion carried 5-0.  

The meeting was adjourned at 6:06 p.m.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Mary Rogers, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes of the Truro Board of Selectmen meeting of 11/7/18 4 

 

 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Robert Weinstein, Chair    Maureen Burgess, Vice-chair 

  

 

________________________________        ____________________________________ 

Kristen  Reed      Paul Wisotzky 

 

 

___________________________________         

  Janet Worthington, Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Records Material of 11/7/18 

1. Draft Budget Message 

2. Filming Application and Agreement for Optomen Productions LLC 

3. Curb Cut Application for Whitmanville Rd. 

4. Common Victualer License – Montano’s Restaurant 

5. 2019 Annual Alcohol Licenses and ABCC Applications – Montano’s Restaurant, Truro 

Vineyards of Cape Cod (Winery and distillery), Salty Market, and Pamet Valley Package 

6. Alcohol Beverages Control Commission 2019 Renewal Certification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	18-12-11 BoS Agenda
	2A Agenda Request Eversource Petition
	2A1 AT&T Public Hearing
	2A2 ATT 47 Truro Center Rd Attachment to existing pole
	2A3 ATT Department Head Approval
	2A4 Abutters Information and location of Eversource Pole
	5A Agenda Request Appointment to Shared Services Working Group
	6 Consent Agenda List
	6A1 Agenda Request Curb Cut
	6A1 Curb Cut 2 Higgins Hollow Road
	Curb Cut 2 Higgins Hollow Road
	Curb Cut Plan of Land

	6A2 Agenda Request-Phase II and III-East Harbor Culvert Replacement
	6A2 Phase II and III Proposal-East Harbor Culvert Replacement
	6A3 Agenda Request One Day Alcohol and Entertainment
	6A3 One Day Alcohol Application and Entertainment Castle Hill
	6A4a FY18 Truro CDP Final Proposal
	0000 Truro Transmittal Letter FY18
	000 FINAL-cover art-TRURO
	00 FINAL-Table of Contents
	1 Truro Introduction-FY18
	2 TRURO SCOPE OF SERVICES-FY18
	3 Truro Minimum eval-FY18
	4 Truro Comparative eval-FY18
	5 Resumes - FY18 Housing Rehab CDBG RFP-Truro
	6 Truro Executed Attachments-FY18
	7a All towns_CDP HR Promotional Flier_FY17_ Inserts
	The Housing Rehabilitation Program is made possible by Community Development Block Grant funds provided by the MA Department of Housing and Community Development.

	7b Tax Insert 10.2018
	8 HR Postcard v. 10.23.18
	9 Housing Rehab Guidelines and Application
	0 Housing Rehab Guidelines and Application
	REGIONAL CDBG GRANTS
	PRIORITIES OF THE PROGRAM ARE TO:
	GRANT PRACTICES AND PRIORITIES:
	I. PROPERTY GUIDELINES
	II. HOUSING REHABILITATION LOAN TERMS
	III. PROPERTY CODE, HEALTH AND SAFETY REPAIRS AND UPGRADES
	IV. PROGRAM TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE ON PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION
	V. REQUIRED INCOME DOCUMENTATION
	ALL applicants and household members 18+ years old must submit:
	INCOME GUIDELINES
	HOUSING REHAB LOAN PROGRAM HOMEOWNER DOCUMENTATION CHECK LIST
	REQUIRED INCOME DOCUMENTATION
	REQUIRED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
	Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
	VOLUNTARY INFORMATION REQUESTED


	IRS Forms for Application

	10 Truro - Final Work Write up
	11 Truro - Sample Bid Estimate

	6A4b FY18 Truro HR Bid Comparison Sheet
	6B Agenda Request Annual Renewals
	6B1 Farm Maid Foods Business Application
	6B2 Top Mast Cafe Business Application
	6B3 Salty Market Business Application
	6B4 Truro Vineyards Business Application
	6C Agenda Request Shellfish License Renewal
	6C1 Dan Smith Request for Coordinate Change
	6D Agenda Request Application to Serve Tom Bow
	6D1 Application to Serve Tom Bow
	6E TBOS 10.16.18_Revised
	6E TBOS min 11.7.18



